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MVV Energie CZ Group – Customers

Supply of thermal energy to

Households 74,466

Industrial customers / industrial facilities 52 / 4

Tertiary sector customers / facilities 644 / 1

Supply of electricity to*

Customers 134

Water supply and sewerage to

Households 3,101

Industrial customers 41

Tertiary sector customers 109

Electronic communications services to

Customers 77

* excluding supplies to the distribution network

MVV Energie CZ Group – Sales of
Thermal Energy and Electricity (MWh)

MVV Energie CZ Group – Consolidated Indicators (in thousands CZK)

Selected indicators 2014–2015 2013–2014 2012–2013*

Total assets 4,667,282 4,818,422 5,055,611

Equity (including minority interest) 2,566,784 2,421,183 2,461,931

Corporate debt 1,386,163 1,630,365 1,805,421

Revenue 2,323,308 2,467,812 2,898,353

Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) 469,394 526,394 472,902

Note: Prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
* In the financial year 2012–2013 the business share in Jablonecká teplárenská a realitní, a.s. was sold.

2014–2015

2013–2014

2012–2013



The energy group MVV Energie CZ is among the leading producers and
distributors of heat in the Czech Republic. The Group is also engaged
in high-performance electricity generation, waste to energy production,
energy consulting, water management and the provision of electronic
communications services. It offers stimulating and stable employment
to its 523 members of staff in the regions.

The Group’s fifteen subsidiaries provide their services to residents,
industrial plants and municipal authorities in fifteen cities
of the Czech Republic, in particular in Moravia, northern Bohemia
and the Vysočina region.

The Group’s parent company is MVV Energie CZ a.s., which was established
in October 1993. Since 1999 the Company has been a subsidiary of
MVV Energie AG, a German energy group, based in Mannheim, Germany.

MVV Energie CZ Group uses conventional as well as renewable sources.
Using the most advanced technology, it works in a way that is ecologically
safe, efficient and environmentally friendly and thus fulfils its corporate motto
‘Responsible Energy’. It also provides long-term support for the cities and
regions in which it operates.
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Company Profile

History of the Company

MVV Energie CZ a.s. was established on 6 October 1993.

The main line of business of the Company, formerly operating

under the name EPS ČR s.r.o., was the provision of energy-

related services. The Company’s original majority owner was

the US-based Energy Performance Services Inc.

In 1999 the German company MVV Energie AG, one of the largest

energy companies in Europe, purchased a majority stake. In the

years that followed it managed to develop a large energy group

in the Czech Republic, which today operates in fifteen towns

throughout the country. MVV Energie CZ a.s. is wholly owned

by MVV Energie AG.

Activities of the Company

MVV Energie CZ Group companies operate mainly in the field

of heat generation and distribution. MVV Energie CZ Group also

produces electricity in eleven cities of the Czech Republic.

In addition, some of its subsidiaries provide water management

or electronic communications services as well as other services.

MVV Energie CZ a.s. has extensive experience with the

implementation of energy-efficiency projects in the Czech

Republic. In addition to projects employing EPC (Energy

Performance Contracting), it also offers related energy services

to customers across the country.

Energy production

To generate heat MVV Energie CZ Group uses a fuel mix whose

dominant component is natural gas. The Group generates

electricity using only cogeneration plants. Nineteen sites in

eleven cities use cogeneration engines or turbines, with a total

capacity of almost 57.8 MWe, to cogenerate electricity and heat.

MVV Energie CZ Group is the only operator in the Czech Republic

to utilize geothermal water to generate heat, for thousands of

households in Děčín. This geothermal source, which has brought

significant improvements to the environment in the entire region,

won the ’Project of the Decade’ award (a competition organized

by the Association for District Heating of the Czech Republic)

for systems supplying heat and cooling.

In 2011 MVV Energie CZ entered the waste-to-energy business.

In the Liberec region, MVV Energie CZ uses more than half of all

the waste produced, which would otherwise end up in landfills,

to generate heat and electricity.

Customers of MVV Energie CZ Group

Our customers in fifteen cities across the Czech Republic are

households, small and large companies and municipalities. In

2014–2015, the MVV Energie CZ Group sold 716 thousand MWh

of heat and 193 thousand MWh of electricity, and its turnover in

the financial year was CZK 2.3 billion.

People in the Company

The Board of Directors, consisting of two members, is the statutory

body of MVV Energie CZ a.s. Jiří Koptík was elected as a member

of the Board of Directors by a decision of the sole shareholder

made on 1 November 2014; since 4 November 2014 he has

acted as the Chairman of the Board of Directors, responsible for

strategy, engineering and the management of all shareholdings.

Libor Žížala is a member of the Board of Directors and is

responsible for finance, information technologies and energy

services. Jitka Kafková, MBA, was a member of the Board of

Directors until 31 October 2014; she has been a proxy holder

since 1 November 2014.

MVV Energie CZ a.s. has 32 employees* in total. The Company

comprises three departments supervised by directors and two

divisions, with some employees reporting directly to the Board

of Directors.

Organizational Structure of the Company

Sole shareholder

Board of Directors

Chairman of the
Board of Directors
Jiří Koptík

Office of the Board of Directors,

legal agenda, communication

and marketing, energy

management

Capital Participation

Department

Jitka Kafková, MBA

Director and Proxy holder

Technical Department

Ivan Slavík

Director

Supervisory Board

Member of the
Board of Directors
Libor Žížala

Financial Department

Information Systems and

Technologies Division

Jan Regner

Manager

Energy Services Division

Libor Bárta

Manager

* total headcount as of 30. 9. 2015 (not including members of the board)
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Company Management

Jiří Koptík
Chairman of the Board of Directors since 4 November 2014

Libor Žížala
Member of the Board of Directors

Jitka Kafková, MBA
Member of the Board of Directors until 31 October 2014,

Proxy holder since 1 November 2014, Director of Capital

Participation Department

Ivan Slavík
Director of Technical Department

Libor Bárta
Manager of Energy Services Division

Jan Regner
Manager of Information Systems and Technologies Division

The work of the Company’s Board of Directors is supervised by

a six-member Supervisory Board, made up of representatives of

the parent company, MVV Energie AG.

Supervisory Board

Udo Bekker
Chairman of the Supervisory Board since 18 May 2015

Dr. Werner Dub
Chairman of the Supervisory Board until 31 December 2014

Dr. Hansjörg Roll
Member of the Supervisory Board since 1 January 2015

Ralf Klöpfer
Member of the Supervisory Board since 1 January 2015

Daniela Kirchner
Member of the Supervisory Board

Dr. iur. Martin Auer
Member of the Supervisory Board

Dr. Anton Bergmann
Member of the Supervisory Board until 1 August 2015

Philipp Leckebusch
Member of the Supervisory Board until 31 December 2014

Jiří Koptík Libor ŽížalaJitka Kafková, MBA

Libor Bárta Jan RegnerIvan Slavík



Organizational
Structure of the Group

DOLNÍ
BENEŠOV

VSETÍN
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OPAVA
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ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s.
94.99%

ENERGIE Holding a.s.
100.00%

e.services s.r.o.
100.00%

TERMO Děčín a.s.
96.91%

G-LINDE s.r.o.
100.00%

G-RONN s.r.o.
100.00%

POWGEN a.s.
100.00%

IROMEZ s.r.o.
100.00%

Českolipské teplo a.s.
100.00%

OPATHERM a.s.
100.00%

Teplárna Liberec, a.s.
70.00%

Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s.
100.00%

CTZ s.r.o.
50.96%

TERMIZO a.s.
100.00%

MVV Energie AG

MVV Energie CZ a.s.

Note: The organizational structure applies as of 30 September 2015.

As of 30 September 2015, MVV enservis a.s., v likvidaci (100.00%)

is still a member of the Concern; it entered into liquidation on

1 October 2013.



Interview with Jiří Koptík,
Chairman of the Board of Directors



How do you evaluate the general developments
in the energy sector?
The energy sector as a whole has undergone major changes in
recent years. The global and European energy industry is
increasingly heading towards the use of low carbon fuels and
energy from renewable sources. This runs in parallel with the
developments in major economies in key countries. This has had
a crucial impact on market conditions, which has been reflected
in a noticeable decline in the prices of energy commodities over
the last year. As far as non-market factors are concerned, more
and more legislation is being passed with regards to the
functioning of the market which is aimed at supporting the use
of renewable energy sources.

The energy industry, as an asset-intensive sector, is therefore
addressing the principal issue of the stability of the environment
in its long-term investments. In the future, power engineering will
be increasingly regionalized, with a gradual intertwining of
energy consumption – both electricity and heat. Likewise, the
substitutability of core energy commodities will grow in a similar
way. When taking into consideration worldwide trends, society
will increasingly lean towards ‘green‘ technology based on gas,
biomass and renewable sources.

The future energy mix will most likely entail a balanced local
solution which takes advantage of centrally generated power to
smooth out the differences between individual regions. District
heat supply systems and the energy recovery of waste could
play a major regional role in the future.

How is the MVV Energie CZ Group prepared for this situation?
MVV Energie Group has just celebrated its 15th anniversary in the
Czech Republic. We are a long-term, stable partner for many
households and enterprises. We provide a comprehensive range
of services to our customers, from our core business – heat
production and distribution – to the eco-friendly energy recovery
of waste and electricity distribution and supply.

We are aware of the evolving situation and are ready to adapt to
new conditions. We offer our customers the traditional services
of comfortable and safe heat supply, along with a broad portfolio
of additional services which, when provided by other suppliers,
are subject to an extra fee. Our solutions meet strict environmental
limits and contribute to improving the environment in the regions
served by our Group.

The Group’s adopted long-term strategy fits well with current
trends in the energy market. The companies that make up
MVV Energie CZ Group will play an increasingly bigger role
in ensuring the energy stability of individual towns and cities.

What specific steps is MVV Energie CZ Group taking?
Our actions can be characterized at three basic levels – customer
relations, good procurement of sources and a reasonable approach
to our portfolio of assets.

We are aware of the changing situation on the heat generation
market. Our customers are demanding simpler and more
transparent products; they want to have a more comprehensive
overview of the savings they can make and to pay a fair price
for the comfort they receive. We have carried out an extensive
survey of the expectations of our customers and set in motion
internal processes that will enable us to better meet their wishes.

In cooperation with our parent company we actively monitor
market developments in energy commodities. This approach
enables us to keep the purchase price of our commodities at
consistently low levels. We have therefore been in a position to
pass on those low prices to our customers and have maintained
heat prices at a constant level for several years.

Heat supply systems require huge investments. These investments
are made with an outlook of twenty to thirty years. All of this is
being done in very turbulent times. We are therefore also ready
to adapt our investment decisions to reflect new conditions.
MVV’s investments are aimed at renewal projects as well as at
measures to make our operations more environmentally friendly.
Together with our partners from towns and cities we are preparing
major investments into network upgrades. However, all our decisions
are made bearing one thing in mind – our desire to generate
a positive impact on the resulting prices of heat and energy.

The winter of 2014–2015 was once again exceptionally warm.
How did this impact MVV Energie CZ financially?
We had a second extremely warm winter season, which deviated
from the long-term average by more than 17%. Our customers
can therefore expect a positive effect on their final billing and
their overpayments will be returned. To minimize the impact on
the company’s financial management, we took many cost-saving
measures. These measures included a greater use of renewable
energy sources. Our operational results as a part of earnings
were therefore only slightly below average.

Extraordinary operations had a significant influence on the
overall results. One of them was the successful conclusion of
a protracted litigation case. The Energy Services Division
recorded a very positive year as it finished implementing EPC
projects for the towns of Holice, Opava and Písek. The Holice
project received the prestigious Accomplishment of the Year
award from the Association for District Heating of the Czech
Republic at the Heating and Energy Days Conference.

What areas will the MVV Energie CZ Group concentrate
on in the future?
Maintaining the stability of our business and increasing its
resistance to risks and external influences is essential to ensuring
a reliable energy supply to our customers. MVV Energie CZ
Group’s long-term strategy is therefore focused on diversifying
the fuel-energy mix and using all of the benefits brought about
by this combination. Dynamic developments in the energy sector
are opening doors to the greater use of renewable energy
sources, as well as to ways of integrating new technologies into
district heat supply systems.

Our core product portfolio includes the generation and
distribution of heat and electricity and the energy recovery of
waste. All the companies within the Group produce electricity
through cogeneration. Combined heat and power generation is
environmentally friendly and is therefore an important tool for
a sustainable development policy.

In the future we want to focus on further increasing the efficiency
of existing networks. I also consider developments in the field of
energy-saving projects as important. Our Group has been active
in this area since 1993, in particular through the use of the EPC
(Energy Performance Contracting) method. In this manner we
have helped our customers to save approximately CZK 1 billion
through our services.

The efforts of our employees have also contributed to the
implementation of cost-saving measures and the achievement of
our company’s high efficiency within the MVV Group. I would like
to take this opportunity to thank them for their work.
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We have supplied energy under the auspices
of MVV for over 15 years

Since 1999 we have managed to build a large energy group

under the MVV brand. We are now one of the Czech Republic’s

leading producers and distributors of thermal energy. The Group

has been providing its customers with comfortable, safe and

reliable heat and electricity supplies for over fifteen years. The

major advantage of district heat supply is its environmental

credentials at a time when heat sources are being subjected to

ever stricter emission limits.

Personnel changes in MVV Energie CZ Group

Jiří Koptík was elected as a Member of the Board of Directors of

MVV Energie CZ a.s. by a decision of the sole shareholder taken

on 1 November 2014; since 4 November 2014 he has acted as

the Chairman of the Board of Directors. Libor Žížala remains

a Member of the Board of Directors. On 31 October 2014,

Jitka Kafková´s position as a Member of the Board of Directors

was revoked. She was approved and granted a proxy by the

sole shareholder of MVV Energie CZ a.s. on 1 November 2014.

As of 1 January 2015, the six-member Supervisory Board of

MVV Energie CZ a.s. consists of: Udo Bekker, Hansjörg Roll,

Ralf Klöpfer, Daniela Kirchner, Anton Bergmann and Martin Auer.

Werner Dub, former Chairman of the Supervisory Board, went

into well-earned retirement at the end of 2014 after many years

in the supervisory body.

Full-range services for our customers

The development of customer support is a priority for the

companies within the MVV Energie CZ Group. Customer

expectation surveys allow us to better listen to their needs and

to continuously improve the quality of our services.

Heat from a heating plant is a complex service. Customer

services and consultancy, the provision of non-stop emergency

services to the system control centre, and the management and

maintenance of heat generation and distribution facilities are all

integral parts of heat supply. Customers also appreciate

convenient and transparent electronic billing.

The EPC project in Holice won the 2014 award
for Accomplishment of the Year

At the expert conference ‘Heating and Energy Days’, the

Association for District Heating of the Czech Republic annually

gives awards to the best projects of the year in the field of district

heating and cooling. The Accomplishment of the Year award started

in 2002. The tenth award in the history of the competition was

presented to the Energy Services Division of MVV Energie CZ a.s.

for its EPC project in the town of Holice. The cost-saving measures

in this case included the upgrading of energy facilities in six

schools and a civic centre owned by the town. Over half of all

the savings will come from the renovation of public street lighting.

The town will save an estimated CZK 29 million in total.

We are a signatory to Transparense

MVV Energie CZ has become a signatory to the European EPC

Code of Conduct in the Czech Republic within the framework of

the pan-European Transparense project. The goal is to increase

the transparency of the market in energy services that are under

guarantee. Partners from twenty countries of the European Union

are engaged in the project. The implementation of EPC projects

is guided by principles set out in the European EPC Code of

Conduct. The Code is not legally binding.
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We help save the environment

MVV Energie CZ continuously invests in the renewal and upgrade

of its distribution networks. The environment and the quality and

efficiency of supply are key criteria for our investment decisions.

This year, textile filters for cleaning exhaust gases were installed

in Mimoň and Jasenice. These filters are up to twenty times more

efficient than the original mechanical devices because they trap

most of the fly ash and easily fulfil the most stringent limits on

solids. These projects will ensure the fulfilment of not only the

existing statutory limits for the discharge of solid pollutants, but

also the limits which will come into effect in 2018.

The subsidiary CTZ s.r.o. carried out an investment project

called ‘Green Wall Regeneration‘, aimed at reducing dust at a

coal and slag storage site in Uherské Hradiště. Using grants

awarded by the State Fund for the Environment, the company

planted 72 trees and 1,044 bushes and shrubs in the vicinity of

the site. The company also prepared a grant project for the

construction of a mist wall to complement the green wall.

Expert seminars and Open Days

MVV Energie CZ Group companies organize expert seminars,

conferences, Open Days and other events for their customers as

well as for the general public. These events are advertised on

the Company’s website as well as on notice boards in the

customers’ individual facilities. Open Days have already been

organized for the last six years. In October 2014, Zásobování

teplem Vsetín organized an Open Day. The premises of the

Jiráskova heating plant in Vsetín were opened to the general

public. The heating plant was visited by more than 140 people,

both children and adults, during the day.

Group employees competed in tournaments again

The MVV Energie CZ Group cares deeply about its employees

and pays attention to their developmental needs, in particular to

their professional and language education, as well as to different

cultural and sporting opportunities. In June 2015, MVV Energie CZ

participated in the MVV Cup football tournament organized by

the parent company MVV Energie AG in Mannheim, Germany.

The Czech team Praxis won the silver medal. In September 2015,

the 11th Sports Games for the Group’s employees took place.

This year´s event was organized by TERMO Děčín. There was

also a photographic contest for the Group’s staff, this time on the

topic of ‘Energy in the Environment’. The twelve winning

photographs were used in the Group’s wall calendar for 2016.

Continued sponsorship of projects
in the Group's towns

The MVV Energie CZ Group has provided sustained support to

the towns and regions in which it operates. Throughout the Group,

sponsorships, donations and support for charitable activities are

focused on social, sports and cultural organizations, projects

and individuals.

In 2014–2015 the Group partnered with the BK Děčín basketball

team, a participant in the MATTONI NBL League, and continued

cooperating with the Opava football team and the Dukla Liberec

volleyball team. Once again it became a partner of the Music

Theatre for Children. Group companies supported agility races, the

Regional Charity in Uherské Hradiště and many other non-profit

organizations, charity events and other projects.

By installing bird boxes on the stacks of the Liberec and Děčín

heating plants, the MVV Energie CZ Group supports a project

promoting nesting areas for birds of prey which are losing their

natural breeding grounds due to the intensifying construction

activities of humans.



44.8/1
MW

MVV Energie CZ Group
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Bodies of the company

Executive managers
Petr Heincl Executive manager

Michal Chmela Executive manager

Supervisory Board
Jiří Koptík Chairman of the Supervisory Board since 24 June 2015,

Member of the Supervisory Board since 12 February 2015

Jitka Kafková, MBA Chairman of the Supervisory Board

until 24 June 2015, Member of the Supervisory Board since

24 June 2015

Evžen Uher Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

Libor Žížala Member of the Supervisory Board

Vladimír Moštěk Member of the Supervisory Board

Drahomír Hlaváč Member of the Supervisory Board

Radovan Jančář Member of the Supervisory Board

since 24 June 2015

Zdeněk Procházka Member of the Supervisory Board

until 24 June 2015

Martin Petrák Member of the Supervisory Board

until 12 February 2015

About the company

Company shareholding structure
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 50.96%

City of Uherské Hradiště 49.04%

Profit from operations
for the accounting period CZK 14,944,000

Total revenue CZK 100,838,000

Number of employees* 31

Installed heat / electricity output 44.8 MW / 1 MW

Customers

Supply of thermal energy to
Households 4,944

Industrial customers / industrial facilities 6 / 1

Tertiary sphere customers 38

Supply of electricity to
Regional electric power distribution system 1

* total headcount as of 30. 9. 2015
(not including members of the board/executive managers)

The company was established by the City of Uherské Hradiště

as its sole founder on 1 March 1996. As of 12 December 2000,

CTZ s.r.o. became a subsidiary of MVV Energie CZ a.s.,

which purchased a 50.96% share in CTZ from the City of

Uherské Hradiště.

CTZ s.r.o. generates and distributes thermal energy in Uherské

Hradiště. The company supplies businesses with processed

steam and households and businesses with hot water. Since 2009,

CTZ s.r.o. has also been a producer of electricity co-generated by

a turbine. It uses the generated electricity for its own purposes

and supplies it to the distribution network.

In the 2014–2015 financial year, the biggest investments included

the connection of the E1 and E2 blocks of flats in Pastýrna,

completion of the hot water supply line to and connection of the

Multipurpose Centre on Hradební street, connection of the

Marketplace in the former barracks and the connection of the

A2 block of flats in Nová Štěpnice. In addition, CTZ s.r.o. carried

out an investment project called ‘Green Wall Regeneration’,

aimed at reducing dust at a coal storage site. Using grants

awarded by the State Fund for the Environment, the company

planted 72 trees and 1,044 shrubs in the vicinity of the site.

In September 2015, the company organized a seminar for its

customers and the general public in Uherské Hradiště to promote

district heating. The seminar focused on an objective comparison

of the costs of centrally supplied heating and alternative sources.

This year CTZ s.r.o. continued its support of the District Charity in

Uherské Hradiště and the local football club, 1. FC Slovácko, the

Special Basic School and Nursery School in Uherské Hradiště

and the Aqua Park in Uherské Hradiště. The company also made

non-financial contributions to organized activities such as agility

races, a scout ball and balls organized by secondary schools.

Company name: CTZ s.r.o.
Registered office: Sokolovská 572,
686 01 Uherské Hradiště
Company identification No.: 63472163
Tax identification No.: CZ63472163
Date of establishment: 1 March 1996
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Bodies of the company

Board of Directors
Jitka Holčáková, MBA Chairman of the Board of Directors

Jan Sulík Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors

since 17 January 2015

Ivan Urban Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors

until 16 January 2015

Supervisory Board
Jiří Koptík Chairman of the Supervisory Board

since 16 January 2015

Jitka Kafková, MBA Chairman of the Supervisory Board

until 16 January 2015

Libor Žížala Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

Karel Tejnora Member of the Supervisory Board

since 16 January 2015

Jan Stejskal Member of the Supervisory Board

until 16 January 2015

About the company

Company shareholding structure
Českolipské teplo a.s. 94.99%

City of Česká Lípa 5.01%

Profit from operations
for the accounting period CZK 17,771,000

Total revenue CZK 175,193,000

Number of employees* 26

Installed heat / electricity output 78.95 MW / 0 MW

Customers

Supply of thermal energy to
Households 9,262

Tertiary sphere customers 62

* total headcount as of 30. 9. 2015
(not including members of the board/executive managers)

ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s. was established by the City

of Česká Lípa, as its sole founder, and registered on 22 February

1996. In 2001, the company joined the MVV Energie CZ Group.

On 15 January 2009, the stake of MVV Energie CZ a.s. in the

company was increased to a 94.99% majority.

The company supplies heat and hot water to over nine thousand

households in the towns of Česká Lípa and Dubá. It also

supplies schools, public authorities, shopping centres and other

buildings. The district heating system covers over 50% of all

households in both towns.

In this financial year ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s.

performed two challenging pipe replacements under arterial

roads in Česká Lípa. As a result, the reliability of the heat supply

for the forthcoming season has improved substantially.

Reduction of electricity consumption continued in the LOOS

boiler unit. A new frequency changer is the reason for the boiler’s

improved efficiency. In the off-heating season the technology

was thoroughly checked, including inspections and necessary

repairs carried out.

This year ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s. supported the

Municipal Festival in Česká Lípa. During the year, support was

also given to the hockey and floorball teams and a financial

contribution was awarded to social services in Česká Lípa.

Company name: ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s.
Registered office: Liberecká 132, 470 01 Česká Lípa
Company identification No.: 64653200
Tax identification No.: CZ64653200
Date of establishment: 22 February 1996
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Českolipské teplo a.s.
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Bodies of the company

Board of Directors
Jitka Holčáková, MBA Chairman of the Board of Directors

Jan Sulík Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors

since 17 January 2015

Ivan Urban Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors

until 16 January 2015

Supervisory Board
Libor Žížala Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Jiří Koptík Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

since 11 March 2015

Jitka Kafková, MBA Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

until 11 March 2015

About the company

Company shareholding structure
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100%

Profit from operations
for the accounting period CZK 29,193,000

Total revenue CZK 48,663,000

Through Českolipské teplo a.s., MVV Energie CZ a.s. manages

its 94.99% stake in ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s.

Company name: Českolipské teplo a.s.
Registered office: Kutvirtova 339/5, 150 00 Praha 5
Company identification No.: 63149907
Tax identification No.: CZ63149907
Date of establishment: 11 September 1995
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e.services s.r.o.

Company name: e.services s.r.o.
Registered office: Oblouková 958/25, 405 02 Děčín
Company identification No.: 28748514
Tax identification No.: CZ28748514
Date of establishment: 10 October 2011

Bodies of the company

Executive managers
Radomír Ondra Executive manager

Jana Pěničková Executive manager

Supervisory Board
Libor Žížala Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Jiří Koptík Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

since 17 March 2015, Member of the Supervisory Board

since 11 March 2015

Jitka Kafková, MBA Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

until 11 March 2015, Member of the Supervisory Board

since 6 May 2015

About the company

Company shareholding structure
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100%

Profit from operations
for the accounting period CZK 207,000

Total revenue CZK 10,657,000

Number of employees* 9

e.services s.r.o. was established in October 2011 as a centre

for shared services for the MVV Energie CZ Group.

During the period concerned the company provided accounting

services, reporting and controlling and non-cash payments

through direct e-banking.

The services were provided to the trading companies within

the MVV Energie CZ Group.

* total headcount as of 30. 9. 2015
(not including members of the board/executive managers)
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Company name: ENERGIE Holding a.s.
Registered office: Kutvirtova 339/5, 150 00 Praha 5
Company identification No.: 27594301
Tax identification No.: CZ27594301
Date of establishment: 27 September 2006

Bodies of the company

Board of Directors
Petr Šimoník Chairman of the Board of Directors

Pavel Jonáš Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors

Supervisory Board
Jiří Koptík Chairman of the Supervisory Board

since 11 March 2015

Libor Žížala Chairman of the Supervisory Board

until 11 March 2015

Martin Drinka Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

since 11 March 2015

Jitka Kafková, MBA Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

until 11 March 2015

Jiří Mareš Member of the Supervisory Board

About the company

Company shareholding structure
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100%

Profit from operations
for the accounting period CZK 72,911,000

Total revenue CZK 294,154,000

Number of employees* 67

Installed heat / electricity output 102.66 MW / 0.295 MW

Customers

Supply of thermal energy to
Households 12,862

Industrial customers 5

Tertiary sphere customers 115

Supply of electricity to
Customers 1

Regional electric power distribution system 1

* total headcount as of 30. 9. 2015
(not including members of the board/executive managers)

ENERGIE Holding a.s. supplies thermal energy in particular to

households and tertiary sector customers in Litoměřice, Louny

and Mimoň. ENERGIE Holding a.s. is also a producer of electric

power in Mimoň.

The biggest investment in the past financial year was the

installation of cloth filters in the Mimoň – Hradčany heating unit.

New, highly efficient filter units replaced obsolete cyclone

separators and decreased the emissions of solids by almost 80%.

The coal-feeding systems on the main boilers were upgraded in

Litoměřice to reduce dust and improve operational safety.

This year, ENERGIE Holding supported the municipal festivals in

Louny, Mimoň and Litoměřice. The company again partnered

with the European Cup of Handicapped Athletes in Louny and

promoted a number of other activities for the residents of towns

in which it provides heating services.
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Company name: G-LINDE s.r.o.
Registered office: Kutvirtova 339/5, 150 00 Praha 5
Company identification No.: 24684538
Tax identification No.: CZ24684538
Date of establishment: 28 May 2010

Bodies of the company

Executive managers
Libor Stuchlík Executive manager

Michal Chmela Executive manager

Supervisory Board
Libor Žížala Chairman of the Supervisory Board

since 17 March 2015, Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

until 17 March 2015

Jitka Kafková, MBA Chairman of the Supervisory Board

until 11 March 2015

Jiří Koptík Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

since 17 March 2015

About the company

Company shareholding structure
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100%

Profit from operations
for the accounting period CZK 2,114,000

Total revenue CZK 13,897,000

Installed heat / electricity output 1.1 MW / 0.971 MW

G-LINDE s.r.o. was established on 28 May 2010 as a wholly owned

subsidiary of MVV Energie CZ a.s. G-LINDE s.r.o. participated in

the implementation of the COGEN II Project in Česká Lípa.

In the financial year 2014–2015, the company continued its reliable

operation of the cogeneration unit installed in Česká Lípa.
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Company name: G-RONN s.r.o.
Registered office: Kutvirtova 339/5, 150 00 Praha 5
Company identification No.: 24679399
Tax identification No.: CZ24679399
Date of establishment: 28 May 2010

Bodies of the company

Executive managers
Libor Stuchlík Executive manager

Michal Chmela Executive manager

Supervisory Board
Libor Žížala Chairman of the Supervisory Board

since 17 March 2015, Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

until 4 October 2015

Jitka Kafková, MBA Chairman of the Supervisory Board

until 11 March 2015

Jiří Koptík Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

since 17 March 2015

About the company

Company shareholding structure
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100%

Profit from operations
for the accounting period CZK 20,393,000

Total revenue CZK 117,775,000

Installed heat / electricity output 11.552 MW / 8.06 MW

G-RONN s.r.o. was established on 28 May 2010 as a wholly owned

subsidiary of MVV Energie CZ a.s. The company participated in

the implementation of the COGEN II Project in Česká Lípa.

In the financial year 2014–2015, the company provided reliable

operation of the cogeneration units installed in Česká Lípa

and carried out maintenance work based on the number of

operating hours.
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Company name: IROMEZ s.r.o.
Registered office: Pod Náspem 2005,
393 01 Pelhřimov
Company identification No.: 24707341
Tax identification No.: CZ24707341
Date of establishment: 14 July 2010

Bodies of the company

Executive managers
Hana Zíková Executive manager

Jaromír Prokop, MBA Executive manager since 3 August 2015

Zdeněk Hippmann Executive manager until 3 August 2015

Supervisory Board
Libor Žížala Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Jiří Koptík Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

since 17 March 2015

Jitka Kafková, MBA Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

until 11 March 2015

About the company

Company shareholding structure
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100%

Profit from operations
for the accounting period CZK 12,059,000

Total revenue CZK 107,168,000

Number of employees* 31

Installed heat / electricity output 53.8 MW / 1.21 MW

Customers

Supply of thermal energy to
Households 3,187

Industrial facilities 2

Tertiary sphere customers 34

Supply of electricity to
Regional electric power distribution system 1

* total headcount as of 30. 9. 2015
(not including members of the board/executive managers)

IROMEZ s.r.o. was established in 2010 and provided business

continuity for the company of the same name, which was

legally established in 1992 when it purchased thermal energy

management facilities from the City of Pelhřimov. Electric power

has been generated in Pelhřimov through the incineration of

biomass in a co-generation unit since 1995. The original

company became a member of the MVV Energie CZ Group in

November 2009.

The company generates and supplies primarily thermal energy

and electricity. In Pelhřimov it supplies heat to households,

schools, nursery schools and buildings owned by the city and

businesses. 95% of the heat is generated from biomass. Fuel oils

constitute another, supplementary type of fuel. Natural gas

boilers are used as back-up sources. Electricity is generated in

two back-pressure turbines in combination with thermal energy.

The most important investments in 2014–2015 included investments

into distribution networks, specifically the insulation of hot water

pipes in VS21 and a change in the heating medium (from steam

to water) in VS11. These changes made it possible to connect

local residents to the hot water network.

This year the company once again sponsored cultural and sports

events in Pelhřimov. Traditionally it supported the Poutník Fest

rock music festival and the City of Records international festival.

Support was also provided to local hockey and football teams.
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Company name: OPATHERM a.s.
Registered office: Horní náměstí 283, 746 01 Opava
Company identification No.: 25385771
Tax identification No.: CZ25385771
Date of establishment: 21 November 1997

Bodies of the company

Board of Directors
Libor Stuchlík Chairman of the Board of Directors

Michal Chmela Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors

Supervisory Board
Jiří Koptík Chairman of the Supervisory Board

since 11 February 2015

Jitka Kafková, MBA Chairman of the Supervisory Board

until 10 February 2015, Member of the Supervisory Board

since 7 October 2014

Libor Žížala Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

since 21 May 2014

Martin Petrák Member of the Supervisory Board

until 10 February 2015

About the company

Company shareholding structure
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100%

Profit from operations
for the accounting period CZK 9,563,000

Total revenue CZK 174,414,000

Number of employees* 57

Installed heat / electricity output 103.464 MW / 0 MW

Customers

Supply of thermal energy to
Households 9,995

Tertiary sphere customers / facilities 48 / 1

* total headcount as of 30. 9. 2015
(not including members of the board/executive managers)

OPATHERM a.s. was established as a private joint-stock

company in 1997. In January 1998, the company took over

the generation, distribution and supply of heat in Opava from

the wound-up Městský podnik bytového hospodářství s.p.

Since June 2001, OPATHERM a.s. has been a member

of the MVV Energie CZ Group.

OPATHERM a.s. generates and supplies heat and hot water

for the cities of Opava and Dolní Benešov. It also provides real

estate lease services and a dispatching emergency service for

real estate companies and associations of homeowners in Opava.

OPATHERM a.s. undertook three investments in 2014–2015.

The biggest investment was the connection of the Francescanea

building to the Olomoucká heating plant. The company also

invested in the gasification of the Palackého boiler unit – the old

coke boiler house was decommissioned and replaced with

a modern gas boiler unit. The third investment was the

cancellation of the Holasická block boiler unit and the

connection of its supply points to the Hillova heating plant.

OPATHERM a.s. continued its long-term support of the local

football club, Slezský fotbalový klub Opava a.s., a social event

at the Edvard Beneš Elementary School and a commemorative

event held by the town on the occasion of the 600th anniversary

of Jan Hus.



26 Annual Report 2014–2015

Company name: POWGEN a.s.
Registered office: Kutvirtova 339/5, 150 00 Praha 5
Company identification No.: 27928411
Tax identification No.: CZ27928411
Date of establishment: 31 July 2007

Bodies of the company

Board of Directors
Libor Stuchlík Chairman of the Board of Directors

Michal Chmela Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors

Supervisory Board
Jiří Koptík Chairman of the Supervisory Board

since 11 February 2015

Jitka Kafková, MBA Chairman of the Supervisory Board

until 11 February 2015, Member of the Supervisory Board

Libor Žížala Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

About the company

Company shareholding structure
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100%

Profit from operations
for the accounting period CZK 28,474,000

Total revenue CZK 234,548,000

Number of employees* 12

Installed heat / electricity output 27.108 MW / 18.268 MW

Customers

Supply of thermal energy to
Households 780

Industrial facilities 1

Tertiary sphere customers 10

Supply of electricity to
Customers 2

* total headcount as of 30. 9. 2015
(not including members of the board/executive managers)

POWGEN a.s. was established on 31 July 2007 as a wholly owned

subsidiary of MVV Energie CZ a.s.

POWGEN a.s. especially provides electricity cogeneration based

on gas engines in five cities served by the MVV Energie CZ

Group. Since 1 April 2010 the company has been generating

and distributing heat in Studénka, too.

In the 2014–2015 financial year, the company finished the

installation of new boilers in Studénka. Routine repairs to the

production technology and distribution systems, as well as the

servicing of the cogeneration units under the COGEN project,

were also carried out.

As in the past, POWGEN a.s. once again provided financial

support for the municipal ball organized by SAK Studénka.
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Company name:Teplárna Liberec, a.s.
Registered office: Dr. Milady Horákové 641/34a,
Liberec IV-Perštýn, 460 01 Liberec
Company identification No.: 62241672
Tax identification No.: CZ62241672
Date of establishment: 13 February 1995

Bodies of the company

Board of Directors
Libor Žížala Chairman of the Board of Directors

Jitka Holčáková, MBA Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors

Vladimír Pitín Member of the Board of Directors

Filip Galnor Member of the Board of Directors

since 8 January 2015

Ondřej Petrovský Member of the Board of Directors

since 8 January 2015

Pavel Bernát Member of the Board of Directors

since 30 September 2015

Jitka Kafková, MBA Member of the Board of Directors

until 29 September 2015

Jana Kašparová Member of the Board of Directors

until 8 January 2015

Tomáš Hampl Member of the Board of Directors

until 8 January 2015

Supervisory Board
Jiří Koptík Chairman of the Supervisory Board

since 28 November 2014

Martin Drinka Chairman of the Supervisory Board

until 28 November 2014

Petr Šourek Member of the Supervisory Board

Viktor Walter Member of the Supervisory Board

About the company

Company shareholding structure
ENERGIE Holding a.s. 70%

Statutory City of Liberec 30%

Profit from operations
for the accounting period CZK 3,824,000

Total revenue CZK 511,591,000

Number of employees* 94

Installed heat / electricity output 181.48 MW / 6.558 MW

Customers

Supply of thermal energy to
Households 15,052

Industrial customers 12

Tertiary sphere customers 126

Supply of electricity to
Customers 1

* total headcount as of 30. 9. 2015
(not including members of the board/executive managers)

The construction of the Liberec heating plant was completed in

1976. In 1995, Teplárna Liberec, a.s., was founded by Severočeské

teplárny, a.s. and the City of Liberec. The last change in the

shareholder structure took place on 4 January 2007, when 70%

of the shares were purchased by the legal successor of ENERGIE

Holding a.s. from United Energy. Teplárna Liberec, a.s. thus became

a member of the MVV Energie CZ Group. The remaining 30% of

shares remain in the ownership of the Statutory City of Liberec.

The main business activities pursued by Teplárna Liberec, a.s.

are the generation, distribution, purchase and sale of heat and

electricity power as well as the sale of natural gas. The heating

plant supplies thermal energy to the City of Liberec and Vratislavice

nad Nisou (a former independent township), a municipal district

of the City of Liberec, and electricity and natural gas to the

plant for energy-efficient use of municipal waste (ZEVO). The

district-heating plant is technologically connected with the plant

for the energy-efficient use of municipal waste (ZEVO) from

which the district-heating plant purchases energy and partly

uses thermal energy for further generation as well.

In the 2014–2015 financial year, the company performed general

overhauls of the clarifier of the chemical water treatment plant

and the hydrochloric acid tank. In the off-heating season, the

operating media used in the demineralized line were replaced

and the implementation of noise reduction measures continued.

This year, like last year, Teplárna Liberec supported the Youth

Academy of the Dukla Liberec volleyball team. The company

also continued its cooperation with the F. X. Šalda Theatre and

remained a key partner of the Food Bank. The cultural life in the

city was enriched by the Kino Liberec project, which aimed to

bring people back to the city centre.
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Company name:TERMIZO a.s.
Registered office: Dr. Milady Horákové 571/56,
460 06 Liberec 7
Company identification No.: 64650251
Tax identification No.: CZ64650251
Date of establishment: 19 February 1996

Bodies of the company

Board of Directors
Pavel Bernát Chairman of the Board of Directors

Vladimír Pitín Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors

Supervisory Board
Jiří Koptík Chairman of the Supervisory Board

since 10 February 2015

Jitka Kafková, MBA Chairman of the Supervisory Board

until 10 February 2015, Member of the Supervisory Board

until 11 March 2015

Libor Žížala Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

About the company

Company shareholding structure
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100%

Profit from operations
for the accounting period CZK 63,604,000

Total revenue CZK 305,085,000

Number of employees* 39

Installed heat / electricity output 38.33 MW / 4.54 MW

Customers

Supply of thermal energy to
Industrial customers 1

Supply of electricity to
Customers 1

* total headcount as of 30. 9. 2015
(not including members of the board/executive managers)

The construction of the waste-to-energy facility in Liberec

commenced in 1996. Construction of the plant for energyefficient

use of municipal waste was financed by TERMIZO a.s. which,

on 29 March 1996, merged with SMOZKO, an interest association

of legal entities operating in the same area. TERMIZO a.s.

became a member of MVV Energie CZ Group in July 2011.

Since 1999, the company has utilised municipal waste for the

waste-to-energy generation of heat and electricity for households

and companies in Liberec. The facilities of TERMIZO a.s. are

technologically connected to Teplárna Liberec, a.s.

The company’s biggest investments in the 2014–2015 financial

year were general overhauls of the slag trap and the hopper

in order to ensure smooth handling of the materials used. The

grating was also replaced and reloaded, with the temperature

reaching over 1000°C. The first section of the electric filter,

through which combustion gases pass, was also reconstructed

in its entirety. To enhance electricity production, the flow rate

of the Spilling turbine was increased.

This year TERMIZO a.s. supported a number of projects – the

publication of geographical books on interesting sites in the

Region of Liberec and the village of Křižany, the Dixieland Jazz

Festival and the activities of the Boveraclub in Liberec, which

renovates and operates historic public transport vehicles. Support

was also given to youth and senior sport teams in Liberec.
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Company name:TERMO Děčín a.s.
Registered office: Oblouková 25, 405 02 Děčín III
Company identification No.: 64050882
Tax identification No.: CZ64050882
Date of establishment: 29 November 1995

TERMO Děčín a.s. was established by its sole shareholder, the

City of Děčín, in 1995. In May 2000, MVV Energie CZ a.s. became

its strategic partner. Since August 2005 MVV Energie CZ a.s.

has had a 96.91% majority share in TERMO Děčín a.s., with the

Statutory City of Děčín retaining a minority share of 3.09%.

TERMO Děčín a.s. generates and supplies heat and hot water

for the cities of Děčín and Jílové. Natural gas and geothermal

water are the sole sources. Using a geothermal source as fuel

for the central supply of heat is unique in the Czech Republic.

In 2012, the central source of heat on Benešovská Street, using

geothermal energy, won the ‘Project of the Decade’ award,

based on a survey of professional journalists organized by the

Association for District Heating of the Czech Republic.

TERMO Děčín a.s. supplies heat from five central sources of

thermal energy, one block boiler unit, and also nineteen house

gas boiler units. The company also supplies treated water to the

municipal technical services for the needs of the city and other

legal entities.

During the 2014–2015 financial year, TERMO Děčín a.s.

implemented several major investments. The company’s biggest

investment was in the reconstruction of the distribution system

and the installation of additional compact delivery stations in six

supply buildings at VS 1 Railway. The investment will allow the

customers and end consumers concerned to control the supply

of thermal energy according to their individual needs, thereby

increasing the user comfort of supply from heat supply systems.

In the field of electricity generation and sales, a new facility was

installed in August 2015 to measure the electricity generated in

the cogeneration units in CZT Benešovská and CZT Bynov.

As in previous years, TERMO Děčín a.s. was a sponsor of the

most important cultural and social event in Děčín – the 2015

Municipal Festival. The company provided a financial contribution

to the Statutory City of Děčín for other events organized by

city-funded organizations. The company also became one of the

main sponsors of the BK Děčín Basketball Team which participates

in the MATTONI NBL League. This year the team finished second

in the highest basketball league, which is the best place the

team has ever achieved. The company also supported AVAZ

Děčín o.s., an association for paraplegics and people with

physical and mental disabilities, to organize sporting events.

* total headcount as of 30. 9. 2015
(not including members of the board/executive managers)

Bodies of the company

Board of Directors
Petr Šimoník Chairman of the Board of Directors

Pavel Jonáš Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors

Supervisory Board
Libor Žížala Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Jiří Koptík Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

since 31 March 2015

Jitka Kafková, MBA Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

until 31 March 2015

Hynek Plachý Member of the Supervisory Board

About the company

Company shareholding structure
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 96.91%

Statutory City of Děčín 3.09%

Profit from operations
for the accounting period CZK 44,202,000

Total revenue CZK 280,047,000

Number of employees* 40

Installed heat / electricity output 100.692 MW / 12.215 MW

Customers

Supply of thermal energy to
Households 10,075

Industrial facilities 1

Tertiary sphere customers 145

Supply of electricity to
Regional electric power distribution system 1
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* total headcount as of 30. 9. 2015
(not including members of the board/executive managers)

Company name: Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s.
Registered office: Jiráskova 1326, 755 01 Vsetín
Company identification No.: 45192588
Tax identification No.: CZ45192588
Date of establishment: 6 May 1992

The joint stock company Zásobování teplem Vsetín was

established in May 1992 by the National Property Fund of the

Czech Republic. Since March 2000 it has been a member of

MVV Energie CZ. Since 18 August 2012, MVV Energie CZ

has held 100% of its shares.

Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. supplies the city of Vsetín and the

Jasenice industrial facility in Vsetín with thermal energy. The main

source in the central heat supply system is Teplárna Jiráskova

(Jiráskova heating plant) which also cogenerates electricity.

From there electricity is supplied to several local distribution

systems and part of it is supplied to the distribution network.

Heat generation capacity was also boosted by the Ohrada

heating plant. The company also uses two local boiler units. In

addition, the company supplies the Jasenice industrial facility

with drinking water, provides waste and rainwater disposal and

telecommunications services. Since 1 April 2011, the company

has also supplied drinking water in Studénka, where it also

removes and treats waste water.

In the 2014–2015 financial year, the company performed several

major investments, the biggest of them being ecologization of

the coal source in Jasenice. The installation of a textile filter

resulted in the reduced emissions of solids. The company also

improved the control system at the Jiráskova heating plant.

With regards to heat networks, the company reconstructed the

heating systems at the Kopeček site, where new delivery stations

were erected. These allow each building to individually set and

control their heating requirements which increases the comfort of

the end consumers. In the field of electricity generation and

sales, a transformer station and electricity distribution networks in

a part of the Jablůnka industrial site were acquired. This resulted

in increased electricity distribution at the site. Transformers and

cables were replaced in part of the Jasenice industrial site.

In October 2014, Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. organized an

Open Day. The Jiráskova heating plant was visited by more than

140 people, children and adults alike, during the day.

This year Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. again supported sports,

cultural and social projects by contributing to SAK Studénka,

Union of Volunteer Firefighters in Vsetín, the Junák scout group in

Vsetín, Diaconia of the Evangelical Church of Czech Brethren –

Vsetín Centre, Christian Congregation in Vsetín, the Vsetín

ice-hockey team and other organizations.

Bodies of the company

Board of Directors
Michal Chmela Chairman of the Board of Directors

Petr Heincl Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors

Supervisory Board
Libor Žížala Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Jiří Koptík Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

since 26 February 2015

Jitka Kafková, MBA Vice-chairman of the Supervisory Board

until 25 February 2015

Josef Matoška Member of the Supervisory Board

About the company

Company shareholding structure
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100%

Profit from operations
for the accounting period CZK 41,298,000

Total revenue CZK 408,695,000

Number of employees* 85

Installed heat / electricity output 140.077 MW / 4.685 MW

Customers

Supply of thermal energy to
Households 8,309

Industrial customers 27

Tertiary sphere customers 64

Supply of electricity to
Customers 129

Water supply and sewerage to
Households 3,101

Industrial customers 41

Tertiary sphere customers 109

Electronic communications services to
Customers 77
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The Compliance Management System (hereinafter the ‘CMS’)

defines and provides guidance on compliance with the ethical

and legal rules of conduct of MVV Energie CZ a.s. (hereinafter

the ‘Company’) and all its employees not only in business, but

also in other areas of the activity and existence of the Company.

These voluntarily adopted rules form an integral part of the

Company’s corporate culture. The system is also applied in all

MVV Energy CZ Group companies.

The Compliance Management System has been in operation in

MVV Energie CZ a.s. since 1 October 2013. To ensure that the

system operates smoothly, the Company uses a structure of

internal guidelines on the basis of which the rules are applied

within the Company.

The Company’s Compliance Management System includes in

particular the following areas of activity:

economic competition

financial and tax matters

employee relations, including equal opportunities

data protection

occupational health and safety

environmental protection

combating corruption

In order to comply with all the values mentioned above within the

framework of the CMS, the MVV Energie CZ Group has a shared

position of Compliance Manager, who provides for supervision

over compliance with the CMS rules in all MVV Energie CZ Group

companies, including MVV Energie CZ a.s. At the same time, the

Compliance Manager takes the necessary measures to remedy

the situation if the rules are violated.

Any employee of MVV Energie CZ a.s., as well as any other

person, is entitled to report any actual or suspected breach of

the obligations and guidelines contained in the CMS via a hotline

set up as part of the CMS in MVV Energie CZ Group, using the

email address compliance@mvv.cz. The Compliance Manager is

responsible for the operation of this hotline and for ensuring the

confidentiality of communication and processing of each

notification made via the hotline.

MVV Energie CZ a.s. may also use the Equal Treatment Manager

and the Data Protection Manager, established as part of the

CMS within the MVV Energie CZ Group.

The Equal Treatment Manager supervises compliance with the

fundamental principles and rules of equal treatment and

protects against discrimination in all Group companies, including

MVV Energie CZ a.s., and settles notifications received with

regards to potential breaches of the principles of equal treatment

and protection against discrimination. The Data Protection

Manager’s key responsibilities include supervision over

compliance with the internal system of data protection and

security in the MVV Energie CZ Group, supervision over

compliance with the deployed internal systems, rules and

regulations and the settlement of notifications received with

regards to potential breaches of data protection and the

processing or unauthorized use thereof.
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Board of Directors’ Report
of MVV Energie CZ a.s.
On business activity of the Company for the financial year 2014–2015
(October 2014 – September 2015)

MVV Energie CZ a.s. operates in the energy sector, primarily in the provision of district heating. In addition to supplying thermal

energy, the Company focuses on the combined generation of electric power and thermal energy. The Company is also active

in the area of municipal solid waste utilization for the generation of energy through its subsidiary TERMIZO a.s. in Liberec.

The business activities of the Company in the energy sector have remained unchanged during the completed financial year.

The primary mission of the Company is the management of its ownership interests in its subsidiaries, the provision of selected

services to these subsidiaries (e.g. information technology services) and the provision of energy services particularly through EPC

(Energy Performance Contracting) to companies outside the Group. The main business activity of the subsidiaries is the generation

and distribution of thermal energy. In some subsidiaries this is supplemented by the operation of plants and the generation of power

from the energy-efficient use of municipal waste, as well as facilities approved for waste co-incineration.

From 1 November 2014 the two-member Board of Directors of MVV Energie CZ a.s. consisted of Jiří Koptík (Chairman of the Board

of Directors as of 4 November) and Libor Žížala. Until 31 October 2014, both Jitka Kafková, MBA, and Libor Žížala were Members

of the Board of Directors. On this date, Jitka Kafková´s membership was rescinded and on 1 November a proxy for her was approved

and granted by the Company’s sole shareholder.

During the year there were intensive discussions on the possible form of future development of the heat supply system in Liberec

with representatives of the Statutory City of Liberec. Different options were analysed. The options currently under discussion focus

on the streamlining of the thermal energy supply by optimizing the scale of the distribution facilities, upgrading the source base

and expanding electricity generation.

The quality and safety of heat and electricity supplies remains a priority for companies within the MVV Energie CZ Group. An active

approach to customers is essential – the supply of heat from a heating plant constitutes a complex service. Customer services and

consultancy, the provision of non-stop emergency services to the system control centre, and the management and maintenance

of heat generation and distribution facilities are all integral parts of heat supply. An extensive survey of customer expectations was

conducted in the financial year 2014–2015 to allow the Group to better listen to their needs and develop customer support. Steps

were also undertaken to offer long-term contracts with a loyalty reward. The negotiations were still under way at the end of the

financial year.
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In connection with legislative changes effective as of 1 January 2014, the sole shareholder of MVV Energie CZ a.s. decided, as of

9 October 2015, to adopt a new full version of its Articles of Association, taking advantage of the new legislative options for corporate

management. The same change will be made to the founding documents of all the companies within the MVV Energie CZ Group by

the end of 2015. The changes to the Articles of Association has not changed the mode of operation with regards to Corporate

Governance i.e. all essential aspects of the operation of MVV Energie CZ a.s. will still be dealt with, approved by and subject to the

decision if the Company's sole shareholder. The Company is also preparing changes to its statutes in line with requirements under the

Business Corporations Act.

The Board of Directors is not only focused on the achievement of the planned financial results of MVV Energie CZ a.s. but also, above

all, on the consolidated financial results of the Group. The Financial Report of the company forms a separate part of the Annual Report

and also addresses company assets. For the closed financial year 2014–2015, the MVV Energie CZ Group generated a consolidated

operating result of CZK 469.4 million, as reported in accordance with the accounting policies of the MVV AG Group based on

International Financial Reporting Standards. This result fully complies with expectations and fulfilled the financial plan for the year.

All the companies in the MVV Energie CZ Group try to conduct their business with the minimum impact on the environment. With

regards to thermal energy generation this involves the use of suitable fuel (natural gas, geothermal source, biomass), the installation

of equipment which minimizes the impact of burning fossil fuels and, most significantly, combining heat and power generation

(cogeneration), thereby maximising fuel efficiency. Another positive impact on the environment results from the implementation of EPC

projects, which improve energy performance in terms of heating, thus saving energy.

Prague, 6 November 2015

Jiří Koptík Libor Žížala

Chairman of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors
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Financial Report

In the financial year 2014–2015, MVV Energie CZ a.s. achieved a net profit before taxation from operations of almost CZK 250 million.

Compared to 2013–2014, the income from operations was CZK 140 million lower. The most important reason for this difference was

a lower income from interests in controlled entities. In 2013–2014, one of the Group’s subsidiaries carried out a one-off distribution of

accumulated retained earnings of over ten years. This marked a major one-off increase in revenues in this category by year-on-year

comparison. 2013–2014 was also positively influenced by the additional one-off effect of the sale of Jablonecká teplárenská

a realitní, a.s.

The Company's operational result reported a mild loss, amounting to CZK 7 million. Compared to 2013–2014, this indicator was lower

in particular due to the one-off dissolution of provisions made in previous years for contingent liabilities resulting from long term

disputes over supply, which were settled in 2013–2014 in favour of the Company.

In contrast, in the financial year 2014–2015, the operating result was positively influenced in particular by higher incomes from the

sale of energy services. Major energy-saving projects in the towns of Opava and Písek were completed. At the industry conference,

Heating and Energy Days, held in April 2015, MVV Energie CZ a.s. received the prestigious '2014 Accomplishment of the Year' award

for its EPC project in the town of Holice, which was implemented at the end of 2013–2014. This project included – in addition to

standard energy-saving measures in the town’s facilities – the replacement of public lighting. In the future, this area will be a very

interesting option for towns to generate energy savings. MVV Energie CZ a.s. was one of the first to establish energy-saving services

in the Czech Republic. This project only underpins its efforts to introduce promising innovations to this sector.

Year-on-year, it is worth highlighting the positive effect of lower personnel costs. Against this, there was a year-on-year decrease in the

volume of sales of centrally provided fuels to companies with an ownership interest. This was in part caused by the prevalently warm

weather last winter.

The financial result, excluding the effects of ownership interests, is approximately equal to that of last year.

On a year-on-year basis, total assets increased by CZK 130 million to over CZK 2.4 billion. The essential reason for this was, in

addition to the positive income from operations, the increased value of ownership interests reported in the Company's equity capital.

Consequently, MVV Energie CZ a.s. has underlined the long term stability of its financial management and preparedness for the

further development of its business.

Financial year
Index (in thousands of CZK) 2014–2015 2013–2014** 2012–2013*

Sales 169,965 163,924 384,769

Earnings before taxes (EBT) 249,941 389,692 126,736

Total assets 2,429,835 2 303,223 2,401,669

Liabilities 46,931 57,900 82,609

Debt ratio (external financial resources / liabilities) 1.93% 2.51% 3.44%

* In the financial year 2012–2013 the business share in Jablonecká teplárenská a realitní, a.s. was sold.

** In the period 2013–2014 additional revenue was reported from the sale of the compan’s share in Jablonecká teplárenská a realitní, a.s.
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Supervisory Board’s Report
of MVV Energie CZ a.s.
for the fiscal year 2014–2015 (October 2014 – September 2015)

During the accounting period 2014–2015 the Supervisory Board consisted of 6 members. The following personnel changes took

place: on 31 December 2014, Dr. Werner Dub resigned from both his positions as a Member of the Supervisory Board and the

Chairman of the Supervisory Board; on 31 December 2014, Mr. Philipp Leckebusch terminated his membership of the Supervisory

Board; Mr. Ralf Klöpfer and Dr. Hansjörg Rudolf Roll were elected as new members of the Supervisory Board with effect from

1 January 2015; Dr. Anton Bergmann terminated his membership of the Supervisory Board on 1 August 2015; on 18 May 2015,

Mr. Udo Bekker was elected the new Chairman of the Supervisory Board; and Mrs. Daniela Kirchner was re-elected as a member

of the Supervisory Board with effect from 2 March 2015.

The Supervisory Board of MVV Energie CZ a.s. has continued to perform the tasks pertaining to it under legislation and the Articles

of Association of MVV Energie CZ a.s. As the corporate supervisory body, it has supervised the performance of the Board of

Directors, as well as the company’s business and economic activities.

During the fiscal year 2014–2015 the Supervisory Board met three times – on 8 October 2014 in Mannheim, 5 December 2014

in Prague and 18 May 2015 in Mannheim.

The Supervisory Board was regularly informed about the company’s activities, its financial situation and other substantial matters,

including those relating to the other companies that make up the MVV Energie CZ Group. Among other things, the Supervisory Board:

took notice of the financial statement of MVV Energie CZ a.s. for the fiscal year 2013–2014 and recommended its approval to the

sole shareholder;

approved the financial plan of the MVV Energie CZ Group for the fiscal year 2014–2015 and recommended its approval to the sole

shareholder;

recommended approval of the auditor for the fiscal year 2014–2015 to the sole shareholder.

In accordance with the law, the Supervisory Board reviewed the regular final accounts and consolidated final accounts as on

30 September 2015. It was concluded that the accounting records and books had been maintained in a probative way in accordance

with accounting regulations and that the final accounts truly and fairly reflect the financial situation of MVV Energie CZ a.s.,

respectively the consolidated unit of MVV Energie CZ a.s. as on 30 September 2015.

The audit of the final accounts was conducted by PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o. The auditors confirmed that it was their

opinion that the final accounts were completed in accordance with Czech accounting legislation and that they provide a true and fair

picture of the financial situation of MVV Energie CZ a.s. as on 30 September 2015. This confirmation also applies to the reporting

of the consolidated final accounts of the international concern MVV Energie AG (in accordance with the IFRS as adopted by the EU).

The Supervisory Board acknowledged the auditor’s opinion.

The Supervisory Board also reviewed the proposal of the Board of Directors with regards to the distribution of profits earned

in the accounting year 2013–2014.

On the basis of the above, the Supervisory Board recommended the consolidated final accounts for the accounting period

2014–2015 for approval by the sole shareholder and accepted the proposal of the Board of Directors for the distribution of profits.

The Supervisory Board would hereby like to thank the Board of Directors and all employees for their continued efforts and

commitment throughout the fiscal year 2014–2015.

In Mannheim, 7 December 2015

Udo Bekker

Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the shareholder of MVV Energie CZ a.s.

We have audited the financial statements of MVV Energie CZ a.s., identification number 49685490, with registered office
at Kutvirtova 339/5, Praha 5 (‘the Company‘) for the year ended 30 September 2015 disclosed in this annual report and issued
the opinion dated 30 October 2015 disclosed therein.

Report on the Annual Report
We have verified that the other information included in the annual report of the Company for the year ended 30 September 2015
is consistent with the financial statements which are included in this annual report. The Statutory Body is responsible for the accuracy
of the annual report. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consistency of the annual report with the financial statements
based on our verification procedures.

Auditor’s Responsibility
We conducted our verification procedures in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and the related application
guidance of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we plan and perform the verification
procedures to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the other information included in the annual report which describes
matters that are also presented in the financial statements is, in all material respects, consistent with the relevant financial statements.
We believe that the verification procedures performed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the other information included in the annual report of the Company for the year ended 30 September 2015 is consistent,
in all material respects, with the financial statements.

Report on review of the Report on Relations
In addition we have also reviewed the accompanying report on relations between the Company and its controlling party and between
the Company and the other persons controlled by the same controlling party for the year ended 30 September 2015 ('the Report‘).
The completeness and accuracy of the Report is the responsibility of the Statutory Body of the Company. Our responsibility is to
express our conclusion on the Report based on performed review.

Scope of Review
We conducted our review in accordance with Audit standard 56 of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic. This standard
requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain limited assurance as to whether the Report is free of material factual
misstatement. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of Company personnel, analytical procedures and examination, on a test basis,
of factual accuracy of data. A review therefore provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and,
accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying Report has not been
properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the requirements of Article 82 of the Corporations Act.

7 December 2015

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o.
represented by

Tomáš Bašta Kateřina Trombalová
Partner Statutory Auditor, Licence No. 2370

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., registered seat Hvězdova 1734/2c, 140 00 Prague 4, Czech Republic, Identification Number:
40765521, registered with the Commercial Register kept by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section C, Insert 3637, and in the Register
of Audit Companies with the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic under Licence No 021.

Note: Our report has been prepared in the Czech language and in English. In all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the Czech version
of our report takes precedence over the English version.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the shareholder of MVV Energie CZ a.s.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of MVV Energie CZ a.s., identification number 49685490, with registered
office at Kutvirtova 339/5, Praha 5 ('the Company'), which comprise the balance sheet as at 30 September 2015, the income
statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information ('the financial statements').

Statutory Body’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Statutory Body is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Czech accounting legislation, and for such internal control as the Statutory Body determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Act on Auditors of the Czech Republic, International Standards on Auditing and the related application guidance of the
Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 30 September 2015,
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Czech accounting legislation.

30 October 2015

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o.
represented by

Tomáš Bašta Kateřina Trombalová
Partner Statutory Auditor, Licence No. 2370

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o., registered seat Hvězdova 1734/2c, 140 00 Prague 4, Czech Republic, Identification Number:
40765521, registered with the Commercial Register kept by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section C, Insert 3637, and in the Register
of Audit Companies with the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic under Licence No 021.

Note: Our report has been prepared in the Czech language and in English. In all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the Czech version
of our report takes precedence over the English version.
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Balance Sheet
financial year 2014–2015 as at 30 September 2015 in thousands CZK
current period from 1. 10. 2014 until 30. 9. 2015, previous period from 1. 10. 2013 until 30. 9. 2014

Ref. ASSETS Current period Previous period
Gross Provision Net Net

TOTAL ASSETS 2,496,347 -66,512 2,429,835 2,302,223

B. Fixed assets 1,958,320 -65,902 1,892,418 1,825,084

B. I. Intangible fixed assets 39,527 -30,454 9,073 10,919

B. I. 1. Software 37,804 -30,313 7,491 10,911

2. Royalties 141 -141 0 8

3. Intangible fixed assets in the course of construction 1,582 0 1,582 0

B. II. Tangible fixed assets 15,818 -12,305 3,513 5,753

B. II. 1. Equipment 14,812 -12,305 2,507 5,261

2. Tangible fixed assets in the course of construction 1,006 0 1,006 492

B. III. Long-term investments 1,902,975 -23,143 1,879,832 1,808,412

B. III. 1. Investments in subsidiaries 1,902,975 -23,143 1,879,832 1,807,491

2. Long-term investments in progress 0 0 0 921

C. Current assets 537,028 -610 536,418 475,910

C. I. Inventories 27,227 0 27,227 44,275

C. I. 1. Work in progress and semi-finished products 0 0 0 14,394

2. Goods for resale 27,227 0 27,227 29,881

C. II. Long-term receivables 18,253 0 18,253 23,643

C. II. 1. Trade receivables 13,749 0 13,749 21,755

2. Deferred tax asset 4,504 0 4,504 1,888

C. III. Short-term receivables 37,075 -610 36,465 61,099

C. III. 1. Trade receivables 12,792 -610 12,182 15,376

2. Taxes – receivables from the state 2,925 0 2,925 3,719

3. Short-term advances paid 3,670 0 3,670 5,064

4. Estimated receivables 17,583 0 17,583 36,938

5. Other receivables 105 0 105 2

C. IV. Financial assets 454,473 0 454,473 346,893

C. IV. 1. Cash in hand 237 0 237 245

2. Cash at bank 454,236 0 454,236 346,648

D. I. Prepayments and accrued income 999 0 999 1,229

D. I. 1. Prepaid expenses 999 0 999 1,229

Note: The financial statements have been prepared in the Czech language and in English. In all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions,

the Czech version of the financial statements takes precedence over the English version.
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Ref. LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Current period Previous period

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2,429,835 2,302,223

A. Equity 2,382,598 2,244,236

A. I. Share capital 720,000 720,000

A. I. 1. Share capital 720,000 720,000

A. II. Capital contributions 1,150,995 1,075,190

A. II. 1. Other capital contributions 571,001 571,001

2. Assets and liabilities revaluation 579,994 504,189

A. III. Other reserves 85,354 66,220

A. III. 1. Reserve fund 85,354 66,220

A. IV. Retained earnings / Accumulated losses 173,692 129

A. IV. 1. Retained earnings 173,692 129

A. V. Profit / (loss) for the current period 252,557 382,697

B. Liabilities 46,931 57,900

B. I. Provisions 18,371 16,770

B. I. 1. Other provisions 18,371 16,770

B. III. Short-term liabilities 28,560 41,130

B. III. 1. Trade payables 7,672 10,176

2. Short-term advances received 910 934

3. Estimated payables 19,978 30,020

C. I. Accruals and deferred income 306 87

C. I. 1. Accrued expenses 294 74

2. Deferred income 12 13
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Income Statement
financial year 2014–2015 as at 30 September 2015 in thousands CZK
current period from 1. 10. 2014 until 30. 9. 2015, previous period from 1. 10. 2013 until 30. 9. 2014

Ref. DESCRIPTION Current period Previous period

I. Sales of goods 69,787 75,960

A. Cost of goods sold 63,637 67,421

+ Gross profit 6,150 8,539

II. Sales of production 85,784 86,598

II. 1. Sales of own products and services 100,178 77,472

2. Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress -14,394 9,126

B. Cost of sales 52,241 70,653

B. 1. Raw materials and consumables used 1,876 1,942

2. Services 50,365 68,711

+ Added value 39,693 24,484

C. Staff costs 37,259 42,698

C. 1. Wages and salaries 21,005 18,227

2. Emoluments of board members 7,205 15,448

3. Social security and health insurance costs 8,345 8,379

4. Other social costs 704 644

D. Taxes and charges 56 54

E. Depreciation and amortisation expense 6,970 6,624

III. Sales of fixed assets and raw materials 0 492

III. 1. Sales of fixed assets 0 492

F. Net book value of fixed assets and raw materials sold 0 187

F. 1. Net book value of fixed assets sold 0 187

G. Changes in operating provisions and complex prepaid expenses 6,737 -47,593

IV. Other operating income 64,640 1,176

H. Other operating expenses 60,958 8,227

* Operating result -7,647 15,955

J. Securities and shares sold 0 10,000

VII. Income from long-term investments 255,087 361,223

VII. 1. Income from investments in subsidiaries and associates 255,087 361,223

X. Interest income 3,051 3,009

N. Interest expense 0 20

XI. Other financial income 58 66

O. Other financial expenses 608 541

* Financial result 257,588 373,737

Q. Tax on profit or loss on ordinary activities -2,616 6,995

Q. 1. – current 0 -805

2. – deferred -2,616 7,800

** Profit or loss on ordinary activities after taxation 252,557 382,697

*** Net profit / (loss) for the financial period 252,557 382,697

**** Net profit / (loss) before taxation 249,941 389,692
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Current period Previous period

Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit on ordinary activities before tax 249,941 389,692

A.1 Adjustments for non-cash movements:

A.1.1 Amortsation/Depreciation of fixed assets 6,970 6,624

A.1.2 Changes in provisions 6,737 -47,593

A.1.3 Profit/loss from disposal of fixed assets 0 -10,305

A.1.4 Dividend and profit distribution income -255,087 -361,223

A.1.5 Net interest income -3,051 -2,989

A.1.6 Other non-cash movements 1,854 0

A* Net cash flow from operating activities before tax and changes in working capital 7,364 - 25,794

A.2 Working capital changes:

A.2.1 Changes in receivables and prepayments and accrued income 36,625 -1,942

A.2.2 Changes in short-term payables, accrued expenses and deferred income -14,733 16,916

A.2.3 Changes in inventories 17,048 -7,794

A** Net cash flow from operating activities before tax 46,304 -18,614

A.3 Interest paid 0 -20

A.4 Interest received 3,119 3,014

A.5 Income tax on ordinary activities paid 2,185 1,713

A.6 Dividends and profit distribution received 255,087 361,223

A*** Net cash flow from operating activities 306,695 347,316

Cash flows from investing activities

B.1 Acquisition of fixed assets -9,115 -3,829

B.2 Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 0 156,587 *

B.3 Proceeds from decapitalization of subsidiaries 0 25,354**

B*** Net cash flow from investing activities -9,115 178,112

Cash flows from financing activities

C.1 Changes in long- and short-term liabilities 0 -2,000

C.2 Changes in equity:

C.2.2 Dividends paid -190,000 -190,000

C.2.3 Distribution the other capital fund 0 -219,000

C*** Net cash flow from financing activities -190,000 -411,000

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 107,580 114,428

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 346,893 232,465

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 454,473 346,893

* The amount of financial year 2014 includes cash income from the sale of a subsidiary Jablonecká teplárenská a realitní a.s. in the amount of

CZK 156,095 thousand.

** The amount of financial year 2014 represents proceeds from the payment of other capital funds from TERMIZO a.s. in the amount of CZK 25,354 thousand.

Financial Statements

Cash Flow Statement
financial year 2014–2015 as at 30 September 2015 in thousands CZK
current period from 1. 10. 2014 until 30. 9. 2015, previous period from 1. 10. 2013 until 30. 9. 2014
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Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
financial year 2014–2015 as at 30 September 2015 in thousands CZK
current period from 1. 10. 2014 until 30. 9. 2015, previous period from 1. 10. 2013 until 30. 9. 2014

Share Reserve Other Revaluation Retained Total
capital fund capital funds reserve earnings

As at 1 October 2013 720,000 59,964 790,001 552,513 196,384 2,318,862

Fair value gains – Investments in controlled
entities/subsidiaries 0 0 0 -48,324 0 -48,324

Contributions to reserve fund 0 6,256 0 0 -6,256 0

Dividends paid 0 0 0 0 -190,000 -190,000

Payment from other capital funds 0 0 -219,000 0 0 -219,000

Other movements 0 0 0 0 1 1

Net profit for the current period 0 0 0 0 382,697 382,697

As at 30 September 2014 720,000 66,220 571,001 504,189 382,826 2,244,236

Fair value gains – Investments in controlled
entities/subsidiaries 0 0 0 75,805 0 75,805

Contributions to reserve fund 0 19,134 0 0 -19,134 0

Dividends paid 0 0 0 0 -190,000 -190,000

Net profit for the current period 0 0 0 0 252,557 252,557

As at 30 September 2015 720,000 85,354 571,001 579,994 426,249 2,382,598
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1. General Information

Basic information about the Company
MVV Energie CZ a.s. (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 6 October 1993 and is registered under register number 14942/B by the

Municipal Court in Prague. The Company’s registered office is Kutvirtova 339/5, Prague 5, 150 00. The identification number of the

Company is 49685490.

The main business activities of the holding company are services in the field of technical and economic advisory and the

implementation of energy saving projects.

The engagement of Jitka Kafková as a member of the Board of Directors terminated on 31 October 2014. The new member of the

Company’s Board of Directors, Jiří Koptík was appointed as at 1 November 2014 and, who performs a function as Chairman as at

4 November 2014.

Granted Proxy:

Jitka Kafková was granted a proxy from 1 November 2014 to 30 September 2015.

The members of the Board of Directors as at 30 September 2015 were as follows:

Position

Jiří Koptík Chairman

Libor Žížala Member

The members of the Board of Directors as at 30 September 2014 were as follows:

Position

Jitka Kafková Member

Libor Žížala Member

The members of the Supervisory Board as at 30 September 2015 were as follows:

Position

Udo Bekker Chairman

Martin Auer Member

Hansjörg Roll Member

Ralf Klöpfer Member

Daniela Kirchner Member

The members of the Supervisory Board as at 30 September 2014 were as follows:

Position

Werner Dub Chairman

Udo Bekker Member

Martin Auer Member

Anton Bergmann Member

Daniela Kirchner Member

Philipp Leckebusch Member

Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
financial year 2014–2015 as at 30 September 2015 in thousands CZK
current period from 1. 10. 2014 until 30. 9. 2015, previous period from 1. 10. 2013 until 30. 9. 2014
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The Company is organised into 3 departements, 2 administrative divisions and 7 independent positions.

The Company’s departments are:

Financial Department

Technical Department

Capital Participation Department

The Company’s administrative divisions are:

IS/IT Division

Energy Services Division

2. Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the Czech Republic

and have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are valued by the equity method.

(b) Intangible fixed assets
All intangible assets with a useful life longer than one year and a unit cost of more than CZK 60 thousand are treated as intangible

fixed assets.

Purchased intangible fixed assets are initially recorded at cost, which includes all costs related with its acquisition. All research costs

are expensed. Development costs of which the results are intended for trading are capitalised as intangible fixed assets and recorded

at the lower of cost and the value of future economic benefits.

Intangible fixed assets are amortised applying the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Software 3 – 6 years

Royalties 6 years

Other intangible fixed assets 3 years

The amortisation plan is updated during the useful life of the intangible fixed assets based on the expected useful life.

A provision for impairment is created when the carrying value of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The estimated recoverable amount is determined based on expected future cash flows generated by the specified asset.

(c) Tangible fixed assets
All tangible assets with a useful life longer than one year and a unit cost of more than CZK 40 thousand are treated as tangible fixed

assets.

Acquired tangible fixed assets are initially recorded at cost, which includes all costs related with its acquisition.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated applying the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Technical improvement to leased building 5 years

Plant, machinery and equipment 4 – 6 years

Furniture and fittings 3 – 6 years

Motor vehicles 3 – 4 years

The depreciation plan is updated during the useful life of the tangible fixed assets based on the expected useful life.

A provision for impairment is established when the carrying value of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The estimated recoverable amount is determined based on expected future cash flows generated by the specified asset.

Repairs and maintenance expenditures of tangible fixed assets are expensed as incurred.
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(d) Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries represent ownership interests in enterprises that are controlled by the Company (‘the subsidiary‘).

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for by the equity method of accounting. Under this method, the investment is initially

recorded at cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the equity of the subsidiary

or the associate as at the balance sheet date. Revaluation of an investment by using the equity method of accounting is recorded

through the Company’s equity.

(e) Other securities and investments
The Company classifies securities and investments, other than investments in subsidiaries, into the following categories: securities

held for trading, securities held to maturity and available-for-sale securities.

(f) Inventories
Purchased inventories are stated at cost less provision. Cost includes all costs related to the acquisition of such inventories (mainly

transport, customs, etc.). The actual cost method is applied for all disposals.

Work in progress includes mainly EPC projects (energy saving projects) or other projects related to the heating industry. In the case of

long-term contracts, the net book value of work in progress also includes the allocation of part of the administrative overhead.

Subcontracted supplies received and other direct costs are expensed as incurred and simultaneously recorded in work in progress

against revenues. Subcontracted supplies are valued at cost. Work in progress is derecognised once the respective revenue is

recognised.

(g) Receivables
Receivables are stated at nominal value less a provision for doubtful amounts. A provision for doubtful amounts is created on the

basis of an ageing analysis and individual evaluations of the credit worthiness of the customers.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, stamps and vouchers and cash in banks, including bank overdrafts.

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that can be exchanged for a predictable the amount of cash and no

significant changes of value over time are expected. Cash equivalents are, for example, deposits with a maturity of less than 3 months

from the date of acquisition and liquid debt securities traded in public markets.

The Company has prepared a cash-flow statement using the indirect method.

(i) Foreign currency translation
Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated and recorded at the rate of exchange ruling as at the transaction date.

In the case of the purchase or sale of foreign currency for the Czech, at the time of the valuation, the rate at which these values were

bought or sold is used.

Cash, receivables and liabilities balances denominated in foreign currencies have been translated at the exchange rate published by

the Czech National Bank as at the balance sheet date. All exchange gains and losses on cash, receivables and liabilities balances

are recorded in the income statement and are presented net.

(j) Revenue recognition
Sales are recognised upon the delivery of products and customer acceptance and are stated net of discounts and value added tax.

Sales are recognised as at the date the services are rendered and are stated net of discounts and value added tax.
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(k) Provisions
The Company recognises provisions relating to probable future obligations or expenditures, when the purpose of the obligations or

expenditures is known but the precise amount, or the time when the obligation or expenditure will crystallise, is not known. However,

provisions are not created for future operating expenditures or for expenditures directly related to future revenue transactions.

(l) Employment benefits
The Company does not recognise a provision relating to untaken holidays due to its immateriality.

The Company recognises a provision relating to rewards and bonuses of employees.

Regular contributions are made to the state to fund the national pension plan. The Company also provides contributions to defined

contribution plans operated by independent pension funds.

(m) Interest expense
All borrowing costs are expensed.

(n) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on all temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and

its tax base. A deferred tax asset is recognised if it is probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available against which the

asset can be utilised.

(o) Related parties
The Company’s related parties are considered to be the following:

parties, which directly or indirectly control the Company, their subsidiaries and associates;

parties, which have directly or indirectly significant influence on the Company;

members of the Company’s or parent company’s statutory and supervisory boards and management and parties close to such

members, including entities in which they have a controlling or significant influence; and

subsidiaries.

Material transactions and outstanding balances with related parties are disclosed in Note 15.

(p) Changes of accounting policies and corrections of prior period
Changes of accounting policies (inclusive deferred tax impact) and corrections of errors arising from incorrect accounting or

unrecorded expenses and income in the prior periods is recorded to account Restatements of retained earnings, if these changes

and corrections are material.

(q) Events after the reporting period
The effects of events, which occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of preparation of the financial statements, are

recognised in the financial statements in the case that these events provide further evidence of conditions that existed as at the

balance sheet date.

Where significant events occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the preparation of the financial statements, which

are indicative of conditions that arose subsequent to the balance sheet date, the effects of these events are disclosed, but are not

themselves recognised in the financial statements.
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3. Intangible Fixed Assets

1 October 2014 Additions / Disposals 30 September 2015
transfers

Cost

Software 37,596 208 0 37,804

Royalties 141 0 0 141

Intangible fixed assets in the course of construction 0 1,790 -208 1,582

Total 37,737 1,998 -208 39,527

Accumulated amortisation

Software 26,685 3,628 0 30,313

Royalties 133 8 0 141

Total 26,818 3,636 0 30,454

Net book value 10,919 9,073

1 October 2013 Additions / Disposals 30 September 2014
transfers

Cost

Software 36,805 988 -197 37,596

Royalties 141 0 0 141

Intangible fixed assets in the course of construction 498 490 -988 0

Total 37,444 1,478 -1,185 37,737

Accumulated amortisation

Software 23,409 3,475 -199 26,685

Royalties 110 23 0 133

Total 23,519 3,498 -199 26,818

Net book value 13,925 10,919

4.Tangible Fixed Assets

1 October 2014 Additions / Disposals 30 September 2015
transfers

Cost

Equipment 14,885 580 -653 14,812

Tangible fixed assets in the course of construction 492 1,094 -580 1,006

Total 15,377 1,674 -1,233 15,818

Accumulated depreciation

Equipment 9,624 3,334 -653 12,305

Total 9,624 3,334 -653 12,305

Net book value 5,753 3,513

1 October 2013 Additions / Disposals 30 September 2014
transfers

Cost

Equipment 12,558 2,456 -129 14,885

Tangible fixed assets in the course of construction 0 2,948 -2,456 492

Advances paid for tangible fixed assets 360 1,697 -2,057 0

Total 12,918 7,101 -4,642 15,377

Accumulated depreciation

Equipment 6,627 3,126 -129 9,624

Total 6,627 3,126 -129 9,624

Net book value 6,291 5,753
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5. Investments in Subsidiaries

As at 30 September 2015:

Number Nominal Cost Carrying % of Net profit / Net Dividend
of shares value value capital (loss) for the assets income

year ended for the year
30 September ended

2015 30 September
2015

Domestic entities

Zásobování teplem
Vsetín a.s. 2,762 78,878 183,872 192,683 100 41,298 192,683 30,000

CTZ s.r.o. – – 31,800 56,956 50.96 14,944 111,766 10,702

TERMO Děčín a.s. 502,895 46,769 49,086 215,239 96.91 44,202 222,102 29,072

Českolipské teplo a.s. 1 2,000 47,795 135,126 100 29,193 135,126 22,000

MVV enservis a.s.,
v likvidaci 1 2,000 11,143 11,143 100 1, 008 122 0

OPATHERM a.s. 100 9,900 134,000 56,790 100 9,563 56,790 15,000

Dubská energetická
společnost a.s. 1,000 1,000 12,000 12,000 100 –* –* 0

ENERGIE Holding a.s. 1 99,635 299,654 377,766 100 72, 911 377,766 53,715

POWGEN a.s. 1 2,000 3,249 156,916 100 28,474 156,916 10,000

G-RONN s.r.o. – – 23,218 90,927 100 20,393 90,927 0

G-LINDE s.r.o. – – 6,219 12,048 100 2,114 12,048 2,000

IROMEZ s.r.o. – – 33,126 69,918 100 12,059 69,918 0

TERMIZO a.s. 1,389 13,890 487,607 515,010 100 63,604 515,010 82,599

e.services s.r.o. – – 211 453 100 207 453 0

Impairment to financial
investment -23,143*

Net book value 1,879,832 255,087

* Note: The impairment consists of: 100% impairment in amount of CZK 12,000 thousand of the company Dubská energetická společnost a.s. The Company has no
ability to effectively use its controlling power over the company Dubská energetická společnost a.s. due to an ownership dispute. The Company has no access to
the recent financial results of the company, therefore no revaluation using the equity method was performed but instead a 100% impairment to financial investment
is created. Further impairment consists of 100% impairment of MVV enservis a.s., v likvidaci in amount CZK 11,143 thousand. This company is being dissolved.

As at 30 September 2014:

Number Nominal Cost Carrying % of Net profit / Net Dividend
of shares value value capital (loss) for the assets income

year ended for the year
30 September ended

2014 30 September
2014

Domestic entities

Zásobování teplem
Vsetín a.s. 2,762 78,878 183,872 182,399 100 31,746 182,399 50,000

CTZ s.r.o. – – 31,800 60,285 50.96 17,365 118,299 2,038

TERMO Děčín a.s. 502,895 46,769 49,086 202,050 96.91 47,013 208,492 25,425

Českolipské teplo a.s. 1 2,000 47,795 128,348 100 27,905 128,348 22,114

MVV enservis a.s.,
v likvidaci 1 2,000 3,465 0 100 -2,085 -8,686 0

OPATHERM a.s. 100 9,900 134,000 62,228 100 7,945 62,228 105,000

Dubská energetická
společnost a.s. 1,000 1,000 12,000 12,000 100 –* –* 0

ENERGIE Holding a.s. 1 99,635 299,654 366,290 100 57,279 366,290 95,000

POWGEN a.s. 1 2,000 3,249 138,637 100 24,474 138,637 10,000

G-RONN s.r.o. – – 23,218 70,533 100 13,220 70,533 0

G-LINDE s.r.o. – – 6,219 11,934 100 2,506 11,934 1,000

IROMEZ s.r.o. – – 33,126 57,648 100 11,938 57,648 0

TERMIZO a.s. 1,389 13,890 487,607 526,893 100 85,094 526,893 50,646

e.services s.r.o. – – 211 246 100 -282 246 0

Impairment to financial
investment -12,000*

Net book value 1,807,491 361,223

* Note: The Company has not ability to effectively use its controlling power over the company Dubská energetická společnost, a.s. due to an ownership dis-
pute. The Company has no access to the recent financial results of the company, therefore no revaluation using the equity method was performed but instead
a 100% impairment to the financial investment is created.
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The Company does not recognise any unpaid dividend income as at 30 September 2015 and as at 30 September 2014.

Cost of financial investment MVV enservis a.s., v likvidaci increased by additional contribution provided above registered capital in

amount of CZK 7,800 thousand and decreased by residual value in amount of CZK 122 thousand in the current year. An impairment

was created in full amount of the financial investment.

There is no difference between the percentage of the ownership and the percentage of voting rights in any of the subsidiary.

6. Inventories

Inventories amounting to CZK 27,227 thousand represent inventories of heavy heating oil as at 30 September 2015. Inventories amounting

to CZK 44,275 thousand represent inventories of heavy heating oil of CZK 29,881 thousand and work-in-progress related to EPC project of

CZK 14,394 thousand as at 30 September 2014. Heavy heating oil is intended as fuel supply to a subsidiary, Teplárna Liberec, a.s.

No impairment is created to inventories as at 30 September 2015 and as at 30 September 2014.

7. Receivables

Current period Previous period

Trade receivables – current 11,598 12,213

– overdue 1,194 9,781

12,792 21,994

Estimated payables – current 17,583 36,938

Other receivables – current 6,700 8,785

37,075 67,717

Provision for doubtful receivables -610 -6,618

Net book value of short-term receivables 36,465 61,099

Long-term receivables 13,749 21,755

Deferred tax receivable 4,504 1,888

Net book value of long-term receivables 18,253 23,643

Total net book value of receivables 54,718 84,742

Overdue receivables of CZK 1,194 thousand as at 30 September 2015 represent receivables from subsidiaries (as at 30 September

2014: CZK 9,781 thousand).

Unsettled trade receivables have not been secured. As at 30 September 2015 the Company has trade receivables due after more

than 5 years in the amount of CZK 662 thousand (as at 30 September 2014: CZK 1,103 thousand).

The change in the provision for doubtful receivables:

Current period Previous period

Opening balance as at 1 October 6,618 8,953

Release of prepayments and accrued income for the year 0 -2,351

Charge for the year for doubtful receivables 267 16

Release of provision for receivables for the year -6,275 0

Closing balance as at 30 September 610 6,618

8. Equity

Authorised and issued share capital

Current and previous period
No. of pieces Carrying value

Ordinary shares of CZK 20,000,000, fully paid 36 720,000

The Company is fully owned by MVV Energie AG, incorporated in Germany. MVV Energie AG is also the parent company of Group

MVV Energie CZ.

The reserve fund is created from the profit of the Company according to Articles of Association and may not be distributed to

shareholders, and may only be used to offset losses.

On 5 December 2014 the General Meeting of the shareholders approved the financial statements for the year ended 30 September

2014 and decided about the allocation of profit of CZK 382,697 thousand.
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9. Provisions

Litigation Income Provision Payables to Total
provisions tax provision for EPC Employees

projects (bonuses)

Opening balance as at 1 October 2013 40,345 0 10,453 5,849 56,647

Charge for the year 108 0 0 4,655 4,763

Released in the year -31,702 0 0 -809 -31,953

Used in the year -7,543 0 -69 -4,517 -12,688

Closing balance as at 30 September 2014 1,208 0 10,384 5,178 16,770

Charge for the year 100 0 0 6,679 6,779

Released in the year 0 0 0 -521 -521

Used in the year 0 0 0 -4,657 -4,657

Closing balance as at 30 September 2015 1,308 0 10,384 6,679 18,371

The analysis of current and deferred income tax is presented in Note 12 Income tax.

10. Liabilities

Current period Previous period

Trade payables – current 5,880 5,956

– overdue 1,792 4,220

7, 672 10,176

Other payables – current 20,888 30,954

Total long- and short-term liabilities 28,560 41,130

Trade and other payables have not been secured against any assets of the Company and are not due after more than 5 years.

The Company does not have any overdue payables related to social or health insurance or any other overdue payables to tax

authorities or other state institutions.

The Company had bank guarantees issued for operational purposes as at 30 September 2015 in amount of CZK 1,077 thousand

(as at 30 September 2014 in amount of CZK 877 thousand).

11. Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

The Company has no bank loans.

The Company has provided guarantees and collateral for loans of its subsidiaries in the following banking institutions:

ČSOB – pledge of the shares of subsidiary, Českolipské teplo a.s. for its loan

UniCredit Bank – pledge of the shares of subsidiary OPATHERM a.s.

UniCredit Bank – pledge of the shares of subsidiary TERMO Děčín a.s. for its loan

ČS – pledge of the shares of subsidiary ENERGIE Holding a.s. for its loan

UniCredit Bank – guarantor statement concerning a loan of POWGEN a.s.

Komerční banka – pledge of shares of subsidiary TERMIZO a.s. for its loan

Raiffeisenbank – pledge of shares of subsidiary IROMEZ s.r.o. for its loan

UniCredit Bank – guarantor statement concerning the loan of G-RONN s.r.o.

UniCredit Bank – guarantor statement concerning the loan of G-LINDE s.r.o.



Annual Report 2014–2015 53

12. Income Tax

The income tax expense consists of:

Current period Previous period

Deferred tax expense -2,616 7,800

Adjustment of prior year tax expense based on final CIT return 0 -805

Total income tax -2,616 6,995

Current tax can be analysed as follows:

Current period Previous period

Net profit before taxation 249,941 389, 692

Items decreasing tax base – mainly dividends and sale of shares -264,789 -421,747

Items increasing tax base 24,291 25,724

Net taxable profit 9,443 -6,331

Deduction of previous tax losses -9,443 0

Corporate income tax at 19% 0 0

Advances paid for income tax 55 2,240

Current income tax asset 55 2,240

The deferred tax was calculated at 19%.

Deferred tax asset can be analysed as follows:

Current period Previous period

Deferred tax asset arising from:

Provisions 18, 981 16,770

Difference between tax and accounting net book value of fixed assets -5,252 -6,833

Deferred tax from previous tax loss 9,978 0

Base for calculation of deferred tax 23,707 9,937

Tax rate 19% 19%

Net deferred tax asset 4,504 1,888

13. Revenue Analysis

Revenues from operating activities were generated from the following domestic activities:

Current period Previous period

Sales of services

Implementation of savings project 47,640 24,234

Services provided within the MVV Energie CZ Group 52,538 52,538

Other 0 229

Total sales of services 100,178 77,472

Sales of goods

– Fuels 69,787 75,960

Other revenues

– Revenues from sales of fixed assets and material 0 492

– Revenues from cessation of receivables 64,616 0

– Other operating income 24 1,176

Total other revenues 64,640 1,668

Change in work-in-progress -14,394 9,126

Total 50,246 164,226
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14. Employees and Members of Statutory Bodies

Current period Previous period

Number of employees

Members of Statutory Bodies 2 2

Average number of other members of management 4 3

Average number of other staff 25 25

Total 31 30

The Company’s management includes executive members of the Board of Directors, Directors of departments and divisional Managers

directly reporting to them.

Management Other staff Total

Current period

Wages and salaries 11,238 16,972 28,210

Social security costs and health insurance 2,778 5,567 8,345

Other social costs 152 552 704

Total 14,168 23,091 37,259

Previous period

Wages and salaries 21,642 12,033 33,675

Social security costs and health insurance 3,763 4,616 8,379

Other social costs 107 537 644

Total 25,512 17,186 42,698

Other transactions with the Company’s management are described in Note 15 – Related party transactions.

15. Related Party Transactions

All material transactions with related parties are presented in this note.

Current period Previous period

Revenues

Sales of goods – sales of fuels 69,787 75,960

Services provided within the Group 52,538 53,009

Dividend income 255,087 361,223

Interest income 231 0

Total 377,643 490,192

Costs

Lease of movable and immovable assets 7,590 8,371

Other services 271 0

Total 7,861 8,371

Related party transactions do not include reinvoicing of emission rights transactions. Company in financial year ended 30 September

2015 purchased emission rights in amount of CZK 4,063 thousand from its subsidiaries and sold these emission rights to related party

MVV Trading GmbH in the same amount. All transactions were settled up during financial year ended 30 September 2015.

The following related party balances were outstanding as at:

Current period Previous period

Short-term trade receivables 4,131 13,957

Provision for receivables 0 - 6,275

Estimated receivables 17,053 19,208

Total receivables 21,184 26,890

Trade liabilities 821 803

Estimated payables 243 244

Total liabilities 1,064 1,047

Total remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors was CZK 7,205 thousand (2014: CZK 15,448 thousand). This remuneration

is part of the staff costs. The Company has not provided any remuneration to the members of the Supervisory Board.
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16. Fees Pais and Payable to the Audit Company

The information relating to the total fees paid and payable for the services performed by the audit company PricewaterhouseCoopers

Audit, s.r.o. is included in the consolidated financial statements of the parent company MVV Energie AG.

17. Commitments

The commitments related to the lease of the Company’s office amounted to CZK 6,039 thousand as at 30 September 2015 (as at

30 September 2014: CZK 1,064 thousand).

18. Contingent Liabilities

The management of the Company is not aware of any significant unrecorded contingent liabilities as at 30 September 2015.

19. Events after the Reporting Period

On the base of legislative changes effective since 1 January 2014, the sole shareholder of the Company decided to adopt new

complete wording of the Articles of Association of the Company with new legislative possibilities of Company management with

the effectiveness from 9 October 2015. These new Articles of Association are now fully governed by the new Act No. 90/2012 Coll.,

on Commercial Companies and Cooperatives (Law on Commercial Corporations), as amended, under § 777 Art. 5 of this Act.

This fact becomes effective as on the date of its registration in the Commercial Register.

As at 30 September 2015 Jitka Kafková, Company’s proxy and Head of Capital Participation Department terminated her employment

with the Company.

Effective from 1 October 2015 Company has implemented new organizational structure, which consists of 4 departments – Capital

Participation Department, Technical Department, Strategy and Development Department and Financial Department and 2 divisions

– IS/IT Division and Energy Services Division.

Dr. iur. Martin Auer terminated his membership in the Company's Supervisory Board on 9 October 2015.

There were no other events that could have had a substantial impact on the financial statement as on 30 September 2015.

30 October 2015

Jiří Koptík Libor Žížala

Chairman of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors
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Report on Relations
for the accounting period from 1 October 2014 to 30 September 2015

Company name: MVV Energie CZ a.s.

Registered office: Kutvirtova 339/5, 150 00 Prague 5

Company identification No.: 49685490

Tax identification No.: CZ49685490

Company registered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague; Section B, File No. 14942 (hereinafter

referred to as the 'Company').

The Board of Directors of the Company:

1) DECLARES THAT
the business concern has joint management – with a holding entity and a subsidiary;

the holding entity as per Section 79 of Act No. 90/2012 Coll., on Business Corporations, as amended (hereinafter referred to as the

'Business Corporations Act') and the majority shareholder are always controlling entities, unless otherwise stated in Section 75

of the Business Corporations Act; the subsidiary is always the controlled entity.

On the basis thereof, the Company’s Board of Directors is obliged, in accordance with the provisions of Section 82 of the Business

Corporations Act, to produce a written report on relations between the controlling and controlled entities for the previous accounting

period within 3 months of the end of the accounting period.

2) APPROVES THIS REPORT ON RELATIONS FOR THE PERIOD OCTOBER 2014 – SEPTEMBER 2015

The structure of relations between the holding entity and all subsidiaries (the controlling and all controlled entities) within the
MVV Energie concern:
The Company belongs to MVV Energie concern; the structure of its entities located in the Czech Republic is shown in Appendix 1

to this Report on Relations.

The controlling entity (holding entity – Concern as per Section 79 of the Business Corporations Act)
The controlling entity (in this concern the holding entity) is MVV Energie AG, with its registered office in the Federal Republic of

Germany, Mannheim D 68159, Luisenring 49, Company identification No. HRB 1780.

Other entities controlled by the controlling entity (i.e. by the holding entity)
The relations between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and the entities controlled by it are described in the reports drawn up by such entities;

this report only shows the relations to the parent company. Other companies belonging to the MVV Energie concern which are

headquartered abroad are not mentioned as the Company does not have any relations with them with the exception of the following

companies, which are subsidiaries of MVV Energie AG: MVV Trading GmbH, Mannheim D 68159, Luisenring 49, Federal Republic

of Germany, Company identification No. HRB 7897; MVV Umwelt GmbH, Otto-Hahn-Straße 1, 68169 Mannheim, Federal Republic

of Germany, Company identification No. HRB 8877; and MVV Umwelt O&M GmbH, Otto-Hahn-Straße 1, 68169 Mannheim, Federal

Republic of Germany, Company identification No. HRB 9355.



Annual Report 2014–2015 57

1. Entities controlled indirectly by the controlling entity (i.e. indirect subsidiaries):
CTZ s.r.o., with registered office at Sokolovská 572, 686 01 Uherské Hradiště; Company identification No.: 63472163;

ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., with registered office at Liberecká 132, Stará Lípa, 470 01 Česká Lípa; Company identification

No.: 64653200;

Českolipské teplo a. s., with registered office at Kutvirtova 339/5, 150 00 Prague 5 – Radlice; Company identification No.: 63149907;

e.services s.r.o., with registered officeat Oblouková 958/25, 405 02 Děčín I; Company identification No.: 28748514;

ENERGIE Holding a.s., with registered office at Kutvirtova 339/5, 150 00 Prague 5 – Radlice; Company identification No.: 27594301;

G-LINDE s.r.o., with registered office at Kutvirtova 339/5, 150 00 Prague 5; Company identification No.: 24684538;

G-RONN s.r.o., with registered office at Kutvirtova 339/5, 150 00 Prague 5; Company identification No.: 24679399;

IROMEZ s.r.o., with registered office at Pod Náspem 2005, 393 01 Pelhřimov; Company identification No.: 24707341;

MVV enservis a.s., v likvidaci, with registered office at Dr. Milady Horákové 634, 460 01 Liberec 4 – Perštýn; Company identification

No.: 27299872;

OPATHERM a.s. with registered office at Horní náměstí 283/58, 746 01 Opava, Město; Company identification No.: 25385771;

POWGEN a.s., with registered office at Kutvirtova 339/5, 150 00 Prague 5; Company identification No.: 27928411;

Teplárna Liberec, a.s., with registered office at Dr. Milady Horákové 641/34a, 460 01 Liberec IV – Perštýn; Company Identification

No.: 62241672;

TERMIZO a.s., with registered office at Dr. Milady Horákové 571, 460 06 Liberec; Company identification No.: 64650251;

TERMO Děčín a.s., with registered office at Oblouková 25, 405 02 Děčín III; Company identification No.: 64050882;

Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s., with registered office at Jiráskova 1326, 755 01 Vsetín; Company identification No.: 45192588.

Role of the controlled entity in the MVV Energie Concern
Direct operator performing business activities in the Czech Republic

Method and means of control
By means of a share interest in the decision-making of the Company’s General Meeting.

A review of meetings held during the accounting period October 2014 – September 2015 which were initiated by or held
in the interest of the controlling entity or its controlled entities and which were related to assets exceeding 10%
of the equity capital of the controlled entity as per the last financial statements.
With the exception of concluding or fulfilling the contracts mentioned below, during the accounting period October 2014 – September

2015 there were no meetings initiated by or held in the interest of the controlling entity or its controlled entities related to assets

exceeding 10% of the equity capital of the controlled entity as per the last financial statements.

The companies Českolipské teplo a.s., CTZ s.r.o., ENERGIE Holding a.s., G-LINDE s.r.o., OPATHERM a.s., POWGEN a.s., TERMO

Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s., TERMIZO a.s. paid dividends to the Company. The Company did not incur any losses

due to such payments.

AGREEMENTS CONCLUDED BY AND BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND THE CONTROLLED ENTITY
(SUBSIDIARY) OR THE CONTROLLING (HOLDING) ENTITY AND MUTUALLY BY AND BETWEEN
THE CONTROLLED ENTITIES DURING THE PERIOD OCTOBER 2014 – SEPTEMBER 2015

Agreements with MVV Energie AG
No agreements between the controlling Company and MVV Energie AG were registered during that period of time.

Agreements concluded by and between the controlled entity and other controlled entities
The following agreements and amendments were in force and effect between a controlled entity and other controlled entities during

that period of time:
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Agreements concluded by and between CTZ s.r.o. and the Company
Payroll and Personnel Management Contract between CTZ s.r.o., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered

into on 29 December 2004. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Consultancy Agreement between CTZ s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 1 October 2006. The Company did not incur

any losses from this contract.

Contract of Mandate – performance of agency activities and representation of the client in matters relating to public procurement,

execution of insurance policies with the selected bidder, representation in relationships arising from insurance policies with respect

to the selected bidder, management of joint property of clients relating to an association, management of the association's accounting

and preparation of annual settlement between CTZ s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 7 January 2009, as amended.

The Company did not incur any losses from this contract. Power of attorney for representing CTZ s.r.o. by MVV Energie CZ a.s. as

per the Contract of Mandate. The Company did not incur any losses from this power of attorney.

Association Agreement – Amendment No. 6 to the Association Agreement for the annual selection of the best bidder for the execution

of a joint insurance policy and the joint execution of an insurance policy covering the risks of the individual parties on behalf of both

MVV Energie CZ a.s. and CTZ s.r.o., entered into on 12 September 2005, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from

this contract.

IS/IT Outsourcing Services Agreement between CTZ s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Personal Data Processing Agreement between CTZ s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

EUA to ERU Allowance Exchange Agreement between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and CTZ s.r.o., entered into on 22 January 2015.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Contract on the Joint Supply of Natural Gas – power of attorney for the Contract on the Joint Supply of Natural Gas, granted on

15 April 2015 by ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., OPATHERM a.s., POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s.,

TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., CTZ s.r.o. to MVV Energie CZ a.s. The Company did not incur any

losses from this power of attorney.

Contract on the Sale of Coal between 2009 and 2012 between CTZ s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2008,

as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract on the Sale and Purchase of Brown Coal produced by Severočeské doly a.s. between 2016 and 2019/2020 between

CTZ s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 24 July 2015. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.
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Agreements concluded by and between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s. and the Company
Consultancy Agreement between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 20 March 2009.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

IS/IT Outsourcing Services Agreement between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 31 December 2013. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Personal Data Processing Agreement between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 31 December 2013. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

EUA to ERU Allowance Exchange Agreement between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., entered into

on 22 January 2015. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Contract on the Joint Supply of Natural Gas – power of attorney for the Contract on the Joint Supply of Natural Gas, granted

on 15 April 2015 by ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., OPATHERM a.s., POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s.,

TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., CTZ s.r.o. to MVV Energie CZ a.s. The Company did not incur any

losses from this power of attorney.

Contract of Mandate between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., OPATHERM a.s.,

POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s., TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 15 April 2015. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract of Mandate between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., OPATHERM a.s.,

POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s., TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 16 June 2014. The Company did not incur losses from this contract.

Contract of Mandate – performance of agency activities and representation of the client in matters relating to public procurement,

execution of insurance policies with the selected bidder, representation in relationships arising from insurance policies with respect

to the selected bidder, management of joint property of clients relating to an association, management of the association's

accounting and preparation of annual settlement between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 7 January 2009, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract. The power of attorney for representing

ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s. by MVV Energie CZ a.s. was granted as per the Contract of Mandate. The Company did not

incur any losses from this power of attorney.

Association Agreement – Amendment No. 11 to the Association Agreement for the annual selection of the best bidder for the

execution of a joint insurance policy and the joint execution of an insurance policy covering the risks of the individual parties on behalf

of both MVV Energie CZ a.s. and ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., entered into on 7 January 2009, as amended. The Company

did not incur any losses from this contract.

Agreements concluded by and between Českolipské teplo a.s. and the Company
Contract on the Lease of Non-residential Premises between Českolipské teplo a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 19 May 2010, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract of Mandate – performance of agency activities and representation of the client in matters relating to public procurement,

execution of insurance policies with the selected bidder, representation in relationships arising from insurance policies with respect

to the selected bidder, management of joint property of clients relating to an association, management of the association's accounting

and preparation of annual settlement between Českolipské teplo a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 7 January 2009, as

amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract. The power of attorney for representing Českolipské teplo a.s.

by MVV Energie CZ a.s. was granted as per the Contract of Mandate. The Company did not incur any losses from this power of attorney.

Association Agreement – Amendment No. 7 to the Association Agreement for the annual selection of the best bidder for the execution

of a joint insurance policy and the joint execution of an insurance policy covering the risks of the individual parties on behalf of both

Českolipské teplo a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 10 August 2006, as amended. The Company did not incur any

losses from this agreement.
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Agreements concluded by and between e.services s.r.o. and the Company
IS/IT Outsourcing Services Agreement between e.services s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Personal Data Processing Agreement between e.services s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Contract of Mandate – Amendment No. 2 to the Contract of Mandate on the basis of which e.services s.r.o. acceded to the Contract

of Mandate – performance of agency activities and representation of the client in matters relating to public procurement, execution

of insurance policies with the selected bidder, representation in relationships arising from insurance policies with respect to the

selected bidder, management of joint property of clients relating to an association, management of the association's accounting and

preparation of annual settlement between e.services s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 2 January 2012, as amended.

The Company did not incur any losses from this contract. The power of attorney for representing e.services s.r.o. by MVV Energie CZ a.s.

was granted as per the Contract of Mandate. The Company did not incur any losses from this power of attorney.

Association Agreement – Amendment No. 13 to the Association Agreement for the annual selection of the best bidder for the execution

of a joint insurance policy and the joint execution of an insurance policy covering the risks of the individual parties on behalf of both

MVV Energie CZ a.s. and e.services s.r.o., entered into on 2 January 2012, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from

this agreement.

Agreements concluded by and between ENERGIE Holding a.s. and the Company
Payroll and Personnel Management Contract between ENERGIE Holding a.s., TERMO Děčín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered

into on 2 January 2007. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Consultancy Agreement between ENERGIE Holding a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 2 January 2007. The Company

did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Contract on the Lease of Non-residential Premises between ENERGIE Holding a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 28 May 2010, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract on the Pledge of Receivables from Insurance Policy No. ZP-P3/410/07LCD between ENERGIE Holding a.s. and

MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 14 March 2013. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

IS/IT Outsourcing Services Agreement between ENERGIE Holding a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Personal Data Processing Agreement between ENERGIE Holding a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Contract on the Joint Supply of Natural Gas – power of attorney for the Contract on the Joint Supply of Natural Gas, granted

on 15 April 2015 by ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., OPATHERM a.s., POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s.,

TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., CTZ s.r.o. to MVV Energie CZ a.s. The Company did not incur any

losses from this power of attorney.

Contract of Mandate between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., OPATHERM a.s.,

POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s., TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 15 April 2015. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.
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Contract of Mandate between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., OPATHERM a.s.,

POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s., TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 16 June 2014. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract for Lease No. SMLV_12_080 between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and ENERGIE Holding a.s., entered into on 19 December 2012,

as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

EUA to ERU Allowance Exchange Agreement between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and ENERGIE Holding a.s., entered into

on 22 January 2015. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Contract on the Sale and Purchase of Brown Coal produced by Severočeské doly a.s. between 2016 and 2019/2020 between

MVV Energie CZ a.s. and ENERGIE Holding a.s., entered into on 28 July 2015. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract on the Sale and Purchase of Brown Coal produced by Severočeské doly a.s. for 2009–2012 between MVV Energie CZ a.s.

and ENERGIE Holding a.s., entered into on 2 October 2008.

Loan Agreement No. 410/07/LCD between ENEGIE Holding a.s., Česká spořitelna a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 19 March 2007. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Contract of Mandate – performance of agency activities and representation of the client in matters relating to public procurement,

execution of insurance policies with the selected bidder, representation in relationships arising from insurance policies with respect

to the selected bidder, management of joint property of clients relating to an association, management of the association's accounting

and preparation of annual settlement between ENERGIE Holding a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 7 January 2009, as

amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract. The power of attorney for representing ENERGIE Holding a.s.

by MVV Energie CZ a.s. was granted as per the Contract of Mandate. The Company did not incur any losses from this power of attorney.

Association Agreement – Amendment No. 8 to the Association Agreement for the annual selection of the best bidder for the execution

of a joint insurance policy and the joint execution of an insurance policy covering the risks of the individual parties on behalf of both

MVV Energie CZ a.s. and ENERGIE Holding a.s., entered into on 12 December 2006, as amended. The Company did not incur any

losses from this contract.

Agreements concluded by and between G-LINDE s.r.o. and the Company
Contract on the Lease of Non-residential Premises between G-LINDE s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 May 2010,

as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract of Mandate – Amendment No. 1 to the Contract of Mandate on the basis of which G-LINDE s.r.o. acceded to the Contract

of Mandate – performance of agency activities and representation of the client in matters relating to public procurement, execution

of insurance policies with the selected bidder, representation in relationships arising from insurance policies with respect to the

selected bidder, management of joint property of clients relating to an association, management of the association's accounting

and preparation of annual settlement between G-LINDE s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 10 November 2010,

as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract. The power of attorney for representing G-LINDE s.r.o.

by MVV Energie CZ a.s. was granted as per the Contract of Mandate. The Company did not incur any losses from this power of attorney.

Association Agreement – Amendment No. 12 to the Association Agreement for the annual selection of the best bidder for the

execution of a joint insurance policy and the joint execution of an insurance policy covering the risks of the individual parties on behalf

of both MVV Energie CZ a.s. and G-LINDE s.r.o., entered into on 10 November 2010, as amended. The Company did not incur any

losses from this agreement.
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Agreements concluded by and between G-RONN s.r.o. and the Company
Contract of Mandate – Amendment No. 1 to the Contract of Mandate on the basis of which G-RONN s.r.o. acceded to the Contract

of Mandate – performance of agency activities and representation of the client in matters relating to public procurement, execution

of insurance policies with the selected bidder, representation in relationships arising from insurance policies with respect to the

selected bidder, management of joint property of clients relating to an association, management of the association's accounting and

preparation of annual settlement between G-RONN s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 10 November 2010, as amended.

The Company did not incur any losses from this contract. The power of attorney for representing G-RONN s.r.o. by MVV Energie CZ a.s.

was granted as per the Contract of Mandate. The Company did not incur any losses from this power of attorney.

Association Agreement – Amendment No. 12 to the Association Agreement on the basis of which G-RONN s.r.o. acceded to the

Association Agreement for the annual selection of the best bidder for the execution of a joint insurance policy and the joint execution

of an insurance policy covering the risks of the individual parties on behalf of both G-RONN s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered

into on 10 November 2010, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract on the Lease of Non-residential Premises between G-RONN s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 May 2010,

as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Agreement on Blockage of Insurance Benefits from an Insured Event between UniCredit Bank Czech Republic, a.s., G-RONN s.r.o.

and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 13 February 2013. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Loan Contract Reg. No. 909/10-120 between G-RONN s.r.o., UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s.,

entered into on 6 December 2010, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Agreements concluded by and between IROMEZ s.r.o. and the Company
IS/IT Outsourcing Services Agreement between IROMEZ s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Personal Data Processing Agreement between IROMEZ s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

EUA to ERU Allowance Exchange Agreement between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and IROMEZ s.r.o., entered into on 22 January 2015.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Contract on the Joint Supply of Natural Gas – power of attorney for the Contract on the Joint Supply of Natural Gas, granted

on 15 April 2015 by ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., OPATHERM a.s., POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s.,

TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., CTZ s.r.o. to MVV Energie CZ a.s. The Company did not incur any

losses from this power of attorney.

Contract of Mandate between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., OPATHERM a.s.,

POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s., TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 15 April 2015. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract of Mandate between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., OPATHERM a.s.,

POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s., TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 16 June 2014. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Association Agreement – Amendment No. 12 to the Association Agreement for the annual selection of the best bidder for the execution

of a joint insurance policy and the joint execution of an insurance policy covering the risks of the individual parties on behalf of both

MVV Energie CZ a.s. and IROMEZ s.r.o., entered into on 10 November 2010, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses

from this agreement.

Contract of Mandate – Amendment No. 1 to the Contract of Mandate on the basis of which IROMEZ s.r.o. acceded to the Contract

of Mandate – performance of agency activities and representation of the client in matters relating to public procurement, execution

of insurance policies with the selected bidder, representation in relationships arising from insurance policies with respect to the

selected bidder, management of joint property of clients relating to an association, management of the association's accounting and

preparation of annual settlement between IROMEZ s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 10 November 2010, as amended.

The Company did not incur any losses from this contract. The power of attorney for representing IROMEZ s.r.o. by MVV Energie CZ a.s.

was granted as per the Contract of Mandate. The Company did not incur any losses from this power of attorney.
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Agreements concluded by and between MVV enservis a.s., v likvidaci and the Company
Agreement on the Assignment of Receivables from Mr. Vladimír Jonáš between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and MVV enservis a.s.,

v likvidaci, entered into on 15 January 2015. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Agreement on Voluntary Contributions in addition to the registered capital between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and MVV enservis a.s.,

v likvidaci, entered into on 16 January 2015. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Receivables Set-off Agreement between MVV enservis a.s., v likvidaci, and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 16 January 2015.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Master Contract No. IT – 2005 – 02 between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and MVV enservis a.s., v likvidaci, entered into on 7 February 2005,

as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Outsourcing Services Agreement between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and MVV enservis a.s., v likvidaci, entered into on 17 February 2010,

as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Consultancy Agreement between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and MVV enservis a.s, v likvidaci, entered into on 1 October 2006, as

amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Agreements concluded by and between MVV Trading GmbH and the Company
General Agreement Concerning the Delivery and Acceptance of Electricity between MVV Trading GmbH and MVV Energie CZ a.s.,

entered into on 1 May 2007, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Agreements concluded by and between MVV Umwelt GmbH and the Company
Service Agreement between MVV Umwelt GmbH, MVV Umwelt O&M GmbH, MVV Energie CZ a.s. and TERMIZO a.s., entered into

on 23 September 2014. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Agreements concluded by and between MVV Umwelt O&M GmbH and the Company
Service Agreement between MVV Umwelt O&M GmbH, MVV Umwelt GmbH, MVV Energie CZ a.s. and TERMIZO a.s., entered into

on 23 September 2014. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Agreements concluded by and between OPATHERM a.s. and the Company
Payroll and Personnel Management Contract between OPATHERM a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 19 December 2003.

The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Consultancy Agreement between OPATHERM a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 2 October 2006. The Company did not

incur any losses from this agreement.

IS/IT Outsourcing Services Agreement between OPATHERM a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Personal Data Processing Agreement between OPATHERM a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Contract on the Joint Supply of Natural Gas – power of attorney for the Contract on the Joint Supply of Natural Gas, granted

on 15 April 2015 by ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., OPATHERM a.s., POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s.,

TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., CTZ s.r.o. to MVV Energie CZ a.s. The Company did not incur any

losses from this power of attorney.

Contract of Mandate between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., OPATHERM a.s.,

POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s., TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 15 April 2015. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract on the Sale and Purchase of Brown Coal produced by Severočeské doly a.s. between 2016 and 2019/2020 between

MVV Energie CZ a.s. and OPATHERM a.s., entered into on 1 July 2015. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.
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Contract on the Sale of Coal between 2009-2012, as amended, between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and OPATHERM a.s., entered into

on 22 December 2008. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract of Mandate – performance of agency activities and representation of the client in matters relating to public procurement,

execution of insurance policies with the selected bidder, representation in relationships arising from insurance policies with respect

to the selected bidder, management of joint property of clients relating to an association, management of the association's accounting

and preparation of annual settlement between OPATHERM a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 7 January 2009, as

amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract. The power of attorney for representing OPATHERM a.s. by

MVV Energie CZ a.s. was granted as per the Contract of Mandate.

EUA to ERU Allowance Exchange Agreement between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and OPATHERM a.s., entered into on 22 January 2015.

The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Association Agreement – Amendment No. 6 to the Association Agreement for the annual selection of the best bidder for the execution

of a joint insurance policy and the joint execution of an insurance policy covering the risks of the individual parties on behalf of both

MVV Energie CZ a.s. and OPATHERM a.s., entered into on 12 September 2005, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses

from this agreement.

Agreements concluded by and between POWGEN a.s. and the Company
Contract on the Lease of Non-residential Premises between POWGEN a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 25 May 2010,

as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Consultancy Agreement between POWGEN a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 27 May 2011. The Company did not incur

any losses from this agreement.

IS/IT Outsourcing Services Agreement between POWGEN a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Personal Data Processing Agreement between POWGEN a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

EUA to ERU Allowance Exchange Agreement between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and POWGEN a.s., entered into on 22 January 2015.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Contract on the Joint Supply of Natural Gas – power of attorney for the Contract on the Joint Supply of Natural Gas, granted

on 15 April 2015 by ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., OPATHERM a.s., POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s.,

TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., CTZ s.r.o. to MVV Energie CZ a.s. The Company did not incur any

losses from this power of attorney.

Contract of Mandate between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., OPATHERM a.s.,

POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s., TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 15 April 2015. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract of Mandate between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., OPATHERM a.s.,

POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s., TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 16 June 2014. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract of Mandate – performance of agency activities and representation of the client in matters relating to public procurement,

execution of insurance policies with the selected bidder, representation in relationships arising from insurance policies with respect to

the selected bidder, management of joint property of clients relating to an association, management of the association's accounting

and preparation of annual settlement between POWGEN a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 7 January 2009, as amended.

The Company did not incur any losses from this contract. The power of attorney for representing Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. by

MVV Energie CZ a.s. was granted as per the Contract of Mandate. The Company did not incur any losses from this power of attorney.

Association Agreement – Amendment No. 10 to the Association Agreement on the basis of which POWGEN a.s. acceded to the

Association Agreement for the annual selection of the best bidder for the execution of a joint insurance policy and the joint execution

of an insurance policy covering the risks of the individual parties on behalf of both POWGEN a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered

into on 1 October 2008, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Loan Contract Reg. No. 179/12-120 between POWGEN a.s., UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s.,

entered into on 30 May 2012, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.
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Agreements concluded by and between Teplárna Liberec, a.s. and the Company
Contract of Mandate between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., OPATHERM a.s.,

POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s., TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 16 June 2014. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

IS/IT Outsourcing Services Agreement between Teplárna Liberec, a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Personal Data Processing Agreement between Teplárna Liberec, a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Contract for TOT Supply No. TO-12-033-D02 between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and Teplárna Liberec, a.s. entered into on 19 December 2012,

as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract on the Lease of Movables No. TO-12-035-D00 between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and Teplárna Liberec, a.s. entered into

on 19 December 2012, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Services Contract No. TO-12-032-D03 between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and Teplárna Liberec, a.s. entered into on 19 December 2012,

as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Master Contract No. TO-12-034-D03 between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and Teplárna Liberec, a.s. entered into on 19 December 2012,

as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

EUA to ERU Allowance Exchange Agreement between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and Teplárna Liberec, a.s., entered into on 22 January 2015,

as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Contract of Mandate between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., OPATHERM a.s.,

POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s., TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 15 April 2015. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract of Mandate – performance of agency activities and representation of the client in matters relating to public procurement,

execution of insurance policies with the selected bidder, representation in relationships arising from insurance policies with respect

to the selected bidder, management of joint property of clients relating to an association, management of the association's accounting

and preparation of annual settlement between Teplárna Liberec, a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 7 January 2009, as

amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract. The power of attorney for representing Teplárna Liberec, a.s.

by MVV Energie CZ a.s. was granted as per the Contract of Mandate. The Company did not incur any losses from this power of attorney.

Association Agreement – Amendment No. 9 to the Association Agreement for the annual selection of the best bidder for the execution

of a joint insurance policy and the joint execution of an insurance policy covering the risks of the individual parties on behalf of both

MVV Energie CZ a.s. and Teplárna Liberec, a.s., entered into on 21 September 2007, as amended. The Company did not incur any

losses from this agreement.
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Agreements concluded by and between TERMIZO a.s. and the Company
Consultancy Agreement between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and TERMIZO a.s., entered into on 3 October 2011. The Company did not

incur any losses from this agreement.

IS/IT Outsourcing Services Agreement between TERMIZO a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Personal Data Processing Agreement between TERMIZO a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Service Agreement between MVV Umwelt GmbH, MVV Umwelt O&M GmbH, MVV Energie CZ a.s. and TERMIZO a.s., entered into

on 23 September 2014. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Contract of Mandate – Amendment No. 2 to the Contract of Mandate on the basis of which TERMIZO a.s. acceded to the Contract

of Mandate – performance of agency activities and representation of the client in matters relating to public procurement, execution

of insurance policies with the selected bidder, representation in relationships arising from insurance policies with respect to the

selected bidder, management of joint property of clients relating to an association, management of the association's accounting and

preparation of annual settlement between TERMIZO a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 2 January 2012, as amended.

The Company did not incur any losses from this contract. The power of attorney for representing TERMIZO a.s. by MVV Energie CZ a.s.

was granted as per the Contract of Mandate. The Company did not incur any losses from this power of attorney.

Association Agreement – Amendment No. 13 to the Association Agreement for the annual selection of the best bidder for the execution

of a joint insurance policy and the joint execution of an insurance policy covering the risks of the individual parties on behalf of both

MVV Energie CZ a.s. and TERMIZO a.s., entered into on 2 January 2012, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this

contract.

Agreements concluded by and between TERMO Děčín a.s. and the Company
Payroll and Personnel Management Contract between ENERGIE Holding a.s., TERMO Děčín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered

into on 2 January 2007. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

IS/IT Outsourcing Services Agreement between TERMO Děčín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Personal Data Processing Agreement between TERMO Děčín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 31 December 2013.

The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Borrowing Agreement between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and TERMO Děčín a.s., entered into on 27 January 2015. The Company did not

incur any losses from this contract.

EUA to ERU Allowance Exchange Agreement between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and TERMO Děčín a.s., entered into on 22 January 2015.

The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract on the Joint Supply of Natural Gas – power of attorney for the Contract on the Joint Supply of Natural Gas, granted

on 15 April 2015 by ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., OPATHERM a.s., POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s.,

TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., CTZ s.r.o. to MVV Energie CZ a.s. The Company did not incur any

losses from this power of attorney.

Contract of Mandate between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., OPATHERM a.s.,

POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s., TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 15 April 2015. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract of Mandate – performance of agency activities and representation of the client in matters relating to public procurement,

execution of insurance policies with the selected bidder, representation in relationships arising from insurance policies with respect

to the selected bidder, management of joint property of clients relating to an association, management of the association's accounting

and preparation of annual settlement between TERMO Děčín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 7 January 2009, as

amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract. Power of attorney for representing TERMO Děčín a.s.

by MVV Energie CZ a.s. The Company did not incur any losses from this power of attorney.
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Association Agreement – for the annual selection of the best bidder for the execution of a joint insurance policy and the joint execution

of an insurance policy covering the risks of the individual parties on behalf of both MVV Energie CZ a.s. and TERMO Děčín a.s.,

entered into on 18 December 2000, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Contract of Mandate between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., OPATHERM a.s.,

POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s., TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 16 June 2014. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Agreements concluded by and between Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and the Company
Consultancy Agreement between Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 1 October 2006,

as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

IS/IT Outsourcing Services Agreement between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s., entered into

on 31 December 2013. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Personal Data Processing Agreement between Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 31 December 2013. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

EUA to ERU Allowance Exchange Agreement between MVV Energie CZ a.s. and Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s., entered into

on 22 January 2015. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Contract on the Joint Supply of Natural Gas – power of attorney for the Contract on the Joint Supply of Natural Gas, granted

on 15 April 2015 by ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., OPATHERM a.s., POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s.,

TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., CTZ s.r.o. to MVV Energie CZ a.s. The Company did not incur any

losses from this power of attorney.

Contract of Mandate between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., OPATHERM a.s.,

POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s., TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 15 April 2015. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract on the Sale and Purchase of Brown Coal produced by Severočeské doly a.s. between 2016 and 2019/2020 between

MVV Energie CZ a.s. and Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s., entered into on 9 July 2015. The Company did not incur any losses from this

contract.

Contract on the Sale of Coal between 2009 and 2012 between Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 31 December 2008, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Contract of Mandate – performance of agency activities and representation of the client in matters relating to public procurement,

execution of insurance policies with the selected bidder, representation in relationships arising from insurance policies with respect

to the selected bidder, management of joint property of clients relating to an association, management of the association's accounting

and preparation of annual settlement between Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 7 January

2009, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract. The power of attorney for representing Zásobování

teplem Vsetín a.s. by MVV Energie CZ a.s. was granted as per the Contract of Mandate. The Company did not incur any losses from

this power of attorney.

Association Agreement – for the annual selection of the best bidder for the execution of a joint insurance policy and the joint

execution of an insurance policy covering the risks of the individual parties on behalf of both Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and

MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into on 18 December 2000, as amended. The Company did not incur any losses from this agreement.

Contract of Mandate between ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s., ENERGIE Holding a.s., IROMEZ s.r.o., OPATHERM a.s.,

POWGEN a.s., Teplárna Liberec, a.s., TERMO Děčín a.s., Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered into

on 16 June 2014. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.

Payroll and Personnel Management Contract between Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s., CTZ s.r.o. and MVV Energie CZ a.s., entered

into on 29 December 2004. The Company did not incur any losses from this contract.
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Other losses incurred by MVV Energie CZ a.s. and the evaluation of the settlement of losses pursuant to Sections 71 and 72
of the Business Corporations Act, as amended
No losses have been incurred by the Company in connection to its participation in the concern and its control in the relevant period.

Secret information
All information and facts which form business secrets of the controlling or controlled entities (the holding entity and the subsidiaries)

or other entities within the MVV Energie concern are confidential, including all information designated by any related entity as being

confidential. In addition to the above, all information relating to the business and other associated information and facts which may be

considered secret and which could harm any entity in the MVV Energie concern are confidential.

As per Section 504 and the disclosure of business secrets pursuant to Act No. 89/2012 Coll., the Civil Code, as amended, this Report

on Relations does not contain any such secret information in order to prevent any losses being incurred by the controlled or

controlling entities (the holding company and subsidiary).

Further information
Further information may be found in the financial statements of MVV Energie CZ a.s.

Evaluation of the advantages and disadvantages resulting from the relations between entities in the MVV Energie concern,
evaluation of risks and information on the settlement of losses
Relations between the companies within the concern are based on market conditions and, therefore, participation in the concern

does not result in any special advantages or disadvantages and risks for the controlled company. During the accounting period,

no measures initiated by or in the interest of the controlling entity or the controlled entities were adopted and implemented, apart

from the usual measures taken by the controlled entities in relation to the controlling entity as the owner of the controlled entity.

No company within the MVV Energie concern incurred any losses due to the Company’s activities and therefore the Company is not

obliged to settle any losses.

Further information
All transactions carried out within the MVV Energie concern are listed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Conclusion
The Board of Directors of MVV Energie CZ a.s. hereby declares that during the period October 2014 – September 2015 no losses

were incurred by MVV Energie CZ a.s. as a result of relations between the controlling and controlled companies (the holding company

and the subsidiary) and between the controlled companies i.e. between all the companies of the MVV Energie concern.

Prague, 30 September 2015

MVV Energie CZ a.s.

Jiří Koptík Libor Žížala

Chairman of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors



ČESKOLIPSKÁ TEPLÁRENSKÁ a.s.
Českolipské teplo a.s. 94.99%
City of Česká Lípa 5.01%

ENERGIE Holding a.s.
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100.00%

e.services s.r.o.
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100.00%

TERMO Děčín a.s.
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 96.91%
Statutory City of Děčín 3.09%

G-LINDE s.r.o.
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100.00%

G-RONN s.r.o.
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100.00%

POWGEN a.s.
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100.00%

IROMEZ s.r.o.
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100.00%

Českolipské teplo a.s.
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100.00%

OPATHERM a.s.
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100.00%

Teplárna Liberec, a.s.
ENERGIE Holding a.s. 70.00%
Statutory City of Liberec 30.00%

Zásobování teplem Vsetín a.s.
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100.00%

CTZ s.r.o.
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 50.96%
City of Uherské Hradiště 49.04%

TERMIZO a.s.
MVV Energie CZ a.s. 100.00 %

MVV Energie CZ a.s.

Note: The organizational structure applies as of 30 September 2015.

As of 30 September 2015, MVV enservis a.s., v likvidaci (100.00%)

is still a member of the Concern; it entered into liquidation

on 1 October 2013.

MVV Energie AG

Annual Report 2014–2015 69

Appendix No. 1 to the Report on Relations
Structure of the MVV Energie concern on 30 September 2015
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Consolidated Group’s Results

The consolidated income from operations includes the results of all the subsidiaries and the parent company for the entire

MVV Energie CZ Group. The consolidated results have been used as the basis for the consolidated results of the international

MVV Energie AG Group, seated in Mannheim, Germany, which are reported in accordance with the Group's accounting policies

and which are based on the valid International Financial Reporting Standards (IAS/IFRS).

The total consolidated revenue for 2014–2015 was over CZK 2.3 billion. Compared to 2013–2014, total heat sales declined slightly.

This was in part caused by cost-saving measures on the part of customers and in part by the warm weather which prevailed

over the Czech Republic during the winter.

As a result of the decrease in electricity prices on world markets the revenues generated from sales of electricity also decreased.

The lower production and sales of electricity were also affected by the mild winter. The reason for this is that the electricity generated

within the Group is only generated through high-efficiency cogeneration and its generation therefore also depends on the production

and sales of heat. The cogeneration of electricity is modern and environmentally-friendly and its importance will grow as the trend

towards the partial decentralization of electricity generation grows. Further developments in this field will depend on whether the State

creates and provides the required conditions.

The lower volume of electricity and heat generation also heralded a lower consumption of fuels, including the costs associated

with their acquisition. The central purchase of fuels also had a positive impact on costs by allowing their acquisition at better prices

compared to individual purchases.

Many operational savings also contributed to the generally lower operating costs year-on-year. These included, among other

things, the integration of renewable sources such as the energy-efficient use of municipal waste in TERMIZO a.s. This is the only

commercially operated facility of its type in the Czech Republic, i.e. without any subsidies from municipal or regional authorities.

Excluding extraordinary effects, we therefore managed to achieve a similar operating result to that in the financial year 2013–2014.

The income from operations was also positively influenced by the energy-saving services which MVV Energie CZ has been providing

on the Czech market since 1993. Energy services constitute a very modern field of activity with promising future potential. They

complement the key pillars of business of the entire MVV Energie CZ Group.

The consolidated total assets at the end of 2014–2015 were CZK 4.7 billion. The year-on-year decrease is the result of the orderly

repayment of loans drawn from financial institutions. In contrast, the value of equity capital grew slightly. The development of other

balance sheet items was relatively stable.
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The chart below shows the development of achieved earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT*), adjusted for some one-off effects

incurred over the last three years. The year-on-year comparison of EBIT* values confirms that the MVV Energie CZ Group is financially

and economically stable and fully prepared for future developments within the scope of the existing market opportunities.

EBIT*

* EBIT (Earnings Before Interest and Taxes) shows earnings before tax and interest and has been adjusted to take into account one-off effects of extraordinary

reserves, dissolved reserves, adjustments, sales and depreciation of redundant assets, acquisition expenses and revenues from or costs of transactions

involving emissions allowances and their revaluation according to IAS 39.
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Consolidated Results of MVV Energie CZ Group (in thousands of CZK)

10/2014–09/2015 10/2013–09/2014 10/2012–09/2013*

Revenues 2,323,308 2,467,812 2,898,353

Sales (incl. Energy tax) 2,239,663 2,346,350 2,818,398

Other operating income 82,930 120,666 81,242

Change of inventory 0 0 -1,322

Capitalized assets for internal services 715 796 36

Operating expenses 1,584,021 1,655,021 2,113,255

Cost of materials / purchased services 1,134,584 1,188,153 1,581,379

Personnel costs 286,054 259,229 283,829

Other operating expenses 163,383 207,639 248,046

Loss from sale of subsidiary 1,194 0 23,272

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 738,093 812,791 761,827

Depreciation and amortisation 268,698 286,397 288,925

Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) 469,394 526,394 472,902

Net interest expenses 50,718 59,985 63,244

Interest expenses 53,158 62,124 69,561

Interest income 2,441 2,139 6,317

Earnings before taxes (EBT) 418,677 466,409 409,657

Income taxes 55,383 54,146 46,670

Deferred taxes 20,785 29,336 36,076

Earnings after taxes 342,509 382,927 326,912

Minority interest 10,154 15,346 17,294

Total Net Earnings after minorities 332,355 367,581 309,618

Note: Prepared in accordance with the accounting policies adopted by the MVV AG Group which are based on the International Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRS) In 2014–2015 the reporting of the costs of statutory bodies moved from operating expenses to personnel expenses.

* In the financial year 2012–2013 the business share in Jablonecká teplárenská a realitní, a.s. was sold.
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Assets 10/2014–09/2015 10/2013–09/2014 10/2012–09/2013*

Fixed Assets 3,617,199 3,788,203 4,167,726

Intangible assets 172,666 176,696 180,132

Software 10,729 13,813 16,752

Goodwill 160,280 161,353 161,352

Advances paid for intangible fixed assets 1,641 1,530 2,028

Emission rights 16 0 0

Tangible assets 3,429,483 3,589,178 3,816,246

Land, land rights and buildings 1,898,436 1,969,950 2,055,313

Machinery and technical equipment 1,470,944 1,579,116 1,726,807

Other tangible fixed assets 5,367 4,985 5,269

Advances paid for tangible fixed assets 54,737 35,128 28,857

Long-term financial assets 0 7 62

Loans 0 7 62

Trade receivables and other assets 15, 049 22,322 171,286

Current Assets 1,050,083 1,030,219 887,885

Inventories 103,690 110,854 97,464

Raw materials and other supplies 103,581 110,383 97,097

Finished goods 109 471 367

Trade receivables 127,042 143,970 118,683

Other assets 17, 951 24,155 36,477

Financial assets 744,811 685,143 542,712

Short-term financial assets 21,635 21,618 25,565

Bank and cash balance 723,177 663,525 517,147

Deffered Income (prepayments and accrued income) 8,099 11,575 19,857

Deffered taxes 48,489 54,522 72,692

Total Assets 4,667,282 4,818,422 5,055,611

Liabilities and Equity 10/2014–09/2015 10/2013–09/2014 10/2012–09/2013*

Equity 2,412,899 2,260,178 2,308,599

Share capital 720,000 720,000 720,000

Capital reserves 666,527 634,268 849,957

Profit and loss carried forward 694,018 538,329 429,024

Total net earnings (Net earnings after taxes) 332,355 367,581 309,618

Minority interests 153,884 161,006 153,332

Long-term liabilities 1,452,757 1,679,714 1,796,518

Long-term bank loans 1,073,939 1,296,556 1,437,277

Long-term finance lease liabilities 40 1,292 3,136

Provisions 11,087 18,716 7,411

Other liabilities 53,611 66,319 61,458

Deferred taxes 314,080 296,831 287,236

Current Liabilities 647,741 717,524 797,162

Short-term bank loans 308,117 327,101 357,855

Short-term finance lease liabilities 1,264 1,857 2,902

Provisions 44,062 21,760 90,266

Trade payables 122,682 142,262 160,176

Advance payments received 82,963 112,414 88,508

Other liabilities 85,147 108,495 93,689

Deferred expenses (prepayments and accrued expenses) 3,507 3,569 3,645

Deferred taxes 0 66 121

Total Liabilities and Equity 4,667,282 4,818,422 5,055,611

Note: Prepared in accordance with the accounting policies adopted by the MVV AG Group which are based on the International Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRS)

* In the financial year 2012–2013 the business share in Jablonecká teplárenská a realitní, a.s. was sold.



Events after the Reporting Period

On the base of legislative changes effective since 1 January 2014, the sole shareholder of the Company decided to adopt new

complete wording of the Articles of Association of the Company with new legislative possibilities of Company management with

the effectiveness from 9 October 2015. These new Articles of Association are now fully governed by the new Act No. 90/2012 Coll.,

on Commercial Companies and Cooperatives (Law on Commercial Corporations), as amended, under § 777 Art. 5 of this Act.

This fact becomes effective as on the date of its registration in the Commercial Register.

As at 30 September 2015 Jitka Kafková, Company’s proxy and Head of Capital Participation Department terminated her employment

with the Company.

Effective from 1 October 2015 Company has implemented new organizational structure, which consists of 4 departments – Capital

Participation Department, Technical Department, Strategy and Development Department and Financial Department and 2 divisions

– IS/IT Division and Energy Services Division.

Dr. iur. Martin Auer terminated his membership in the Company's Supervisory Board on 9 October 2015.

There were no other events that could have had a substantial impact on the financial statement as on 30 September 2015.

74 Annual Report 2014–2015



MVV Energie CZ a.s.
Kutvirtova 339/5
150 00 Prague 5
Czech Republic
phone: +420 272 113 113
fax: +420 272 733 935
e-mail: mvv@mvv.cz
Company identification No. 49685490
Tax identification No. CZ49685490
Registered in the Commercial Register administered by
the Municipal Court in Prague, File No. B 14942.

www.mvv.cz

Design and Production: Monolake s.r.o. 2015



www.mvv.cz


	Annual Report 2014–2015
	General Section
	Company Profile
	Organizational Structure of the Group
	Interview with Jiří Koptík, Chairman of the Board of Directors
	Major Events of 2014–2015
	MVV Energie CZ Group
	Compliance

	Financial Section
	Board of Directors’ Report
	Financial Report
	Supervisory Board’s Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Financial Statements
	Report on Relations
	Consolidated Group’s Results
	Events after the Reporting Period





